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dvg©v GBW&m wjwg‡UW G‡·jwmqi Mªæc-Gi GKwU A½ cªwZôvb| GB Mªæc-Gi AšÍf©y³ mKj cªwZôvbmg~‡ni 
bvg, Dnv‡`i ¯’vc‡bi mb Ges ms‡¶‡c  Dnv‡`i Kvh©μg wb‡gœ ewY©Z n‡jvt

              bvg I Kvh©μg ¯’vc‡bi mb 

 G‡·jwmqi †UªwWs K‡c©v‡ikb wjwg‡UW 1972Bs
-  B‡ÛbUi, ißvbxKviK I Avg`vbxKviK 

‡e½j we¯‹yU wjwg‡UW 1980Bs
-  DbœZgv‡bi gq`v, we¯‹yU I K¨vwÛ cª¯ÍyZKviK

dvg©v GBW&m wjwg‡UW 1981Bs
-  wbDUªvj Møvm G¨v¤úyj cª¯ÍyZKviK 

G‡·jwmqi Mv‡g©›Um wjwg‡UW 1984Bs
-  100% ißvbxg~Lx †cvlvK cª¯ÍyZKviK

G‡·jwmqi my¨R wjwg‡UW 1988Bs
-  100% ißvbxg~Lx RyZv cª¯ÍyZKviK

G‡·jwmqi K‡c©v‡ikb wjwg‡UW 1990Bs  
-  K‡c©v‡iU G¨v‡dqvm© msμvšÍ
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cwiPvjbv cl©`

mswewae× wbix¶K
†gmvm© kwdK emvK GÛ †Kvs, 
PvU©vW© GKvD›U¨v›Um, 
kZvãx †m›Uvi (6ô I 8g Zjv) 
292, Bbvi mvK©yjvi †ivW,
dwKivcyj, gwZwSj, XvKv-1000| 

e¨vsKvi
1| Avj-Avivdvn& Bmjvgx e¨vsK wjwg‡UW, wf, AvB, wc, †ivW eªvÂ, bqv cëb, XvKv|
2| evsjv‡`k Kgvm© e¨vsK wjwg‡UW, wcªwÝcvj eªvÂ, 9 ivRDK GwfwbD, gwZwSj, XvKv|
3| c~evjx e¨vsK wjwg‡UW, bqv cëb eªvÂ, XvKv|
4| WvP&-evsjv e¨vsK wjwg‡UW, ˆe‡`wkK evwYR¨ kvLv, gwZwSj, XvKv|
5| WvP&-evsjv e¨vsK wjwg‡UW, weRqbMi kvLv, XvKv|
6| Gwe e¨vsK wjt, P›`ªv eªvÂ, Kvwjqv‰Ki, MvRxcyi|
7| AvB Gd AvB wm e¨vsK wjt, P›`ªv eªvÂ, Kvwjqv‰Ki, MvRxcyi|

wbewÜZ Kvh©vjq
345 †m¸b evwMPv, igbv, XvKv-1000|
†dvbt +88(02)222220741, 222227742-43
B-‡gBjt pal.hinfo@gmail.com
I‡qet www.pharmaaids.com

KviLvbv
P›`ªv, _vbvt Kvwjqv‰Ki, †Rjvt MvRxcyi |
B-‡gBjt pharmaaidsltd@gmail.com
†gvevBjt 01711-814612

Rbve Gg G gvmy`
†Pqvig¨vb

wg‡mm kvwnbyi †eex
cwiPvjK

wg‡mm kvwnbyi †eMg
cwiPvjK

Rbve †gvt †gvwgbyj nK Xvjx
¯^Zš¿ cwiPvjK

Rbve dv‡qRyj nvmvb
e¨e¯’vcbv cwiPvjK

†gmvm© gv‡jK wmwÏKx Iqvjx 
PvU©vW© GKvD›U¨v›Um, 
9-wR, gwZwSj evwYwR¨K GjvKv 
XvKv-1000| 

cÖwZcvjb wbix¶K
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Notice of the 41st Annual General Meeting

PHARMA AIDS LIMITED
345 Segun Bagicha, Dhaka-1000

Notice of the 41st Annual General Meeting

Notice is hereby given that the 41st Annual General Meeting (AGM) of Pharma Aids Limited will be 
held on Tuesday, 27th December, 2022, at 11:30 a.m. using Digital Platform (in pursuant to the 
BSEC’s Order No. SEC/SRMIC/94-231/91 dated 31 March, 2021) at the link https://pal.agm.watch 
to transact the following business: 

1. To confirm minutes of the 40th Annual General Meeting held on 30-12-2021.

2. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the 
Financial Year ended on 30th June, 2022, together with the reports of the Directors and the 
Auditors. 

3. To approve dividend for the year ended on 30th June, 2022, as recommended by the Board of 
Directors.

4. To elect/re-elect Directors in accordance with relevant provisions of the Articles of Association 
of the Company.

5. To elect/re-elect the Independent Director of the Company.

6. To fix-up and approve remuneration/honorarium of the Directors of the Board.

7. To appoint/re-appoint Statutory Auditor for the Financial Year 2022-2023 and fix-up their 
remuneration. 

8. To appoint/re-appoint Compliance Auditor for the Financial Year 2022-2023 and fix-up their 
remuneration; and

9. To transact any other business with the permission of the Chair.

 By Order of the Board of Directors
 Sd/-
Dated: December 05, 2022  (Muhibul Hassan Adil)
      Chief Financial Officer

Notes:

a) Shareholders whose names appear on the Member/Depository Register as on the “Record 
Date”, i.e. December 08, 2022, shall be eligible to attend the 41st AGM and qualify for the 
dividend to be approved at the AGM. 

b) A shareholder may appoint a Proxy to attend and vote at the AGM on his/her behalf. The Proxy 
Form, found on the last page of the Annual Report 2021-2022, filled up and revenue stamped 
of TK. 20/-, must be deposited to the Registered Office of the Company at 345, Segun Bagicha 
(1st floor), Dhaka-1000, at least 72 hours before the time fixed for the meeting.



Notice of the 41th Annual Ceneral Meeting
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Notice of the 41st Annual General Meeting
c) The soft copy of the Annual Report 2021-2022 will be sent to the shareholders through email 

addresses as available with the Company as per BSEC Notification No. 
BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/208/Admin/81 dated 20 June 2018. Soft copy of the Annual Report 
will also be available in our Company website at: www.pharmaaids.com

d) The link and login process of digital platform will also be available in Company’s website in due 
time. The shareholders will be able to vote and submit their questions/comments through 
virtual link 24 hours before commencement of the AGM and during the AGM. For logging into 
the system, the shareholders need to put their Beneficiary Owner (BO) ID/Folio number and 
other credentials as proof of their identity. Please contact mobile No. 01913-708111 for any 
technical difficulties in accessing the virtual meeting.

e) Shareholders bearing BO ID are requested to update their details of Bank A/c No., e-mail 
address, change of address, mobile number, and 12 digit Tax payers’ identification number 
(e-Tin) through their respective brokerage houses/depository participant (DP). This is to 
ensure that the Dividends are successfully deposited to the correct Bank A/c., Dividend 
Warrants (if any) are delivered to the correct address, and also tax at source is deducted 
@10% instead of @15%. The shareholders who are maintaining Folio No. are advised to 
Demat their shares and update their details in the same manner to ensure timely receipt of 
dividends.
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†Pqvig¨vb g‡nv`‡qi cªwZ‡e`b

wemwgjøvwni ingvwbi ivwng,

m¤§vwbZ †kqvi‡nvìvie„›`, 

Avm&mvjvgy AvjvBKyg Iqv ingvZyjøvn&|

dvg©v GBW&m wjt-Gi 41Zg evwl©K mvaviY mfvi wWwRUvj cøvUd‡g© mshy³ nIqvi Rb¨ Avgvi I †Kv¤úvwbi 
cÿ †_‡K Avcbv‡`i mKj‡K Rvbvw”Q AvšÍwiK Awfb›`b I ï‡f”Qv| 

Av‡jvP¨ A_© eQ‡i we‡k¦ A_©‰bwZK g›`ve¯’v I ivwkqv-BD‡μb hy‡×i Kvi‡Y c„w_exi me©¯Í‡ii A¯^vfvweK 
Aw¯’iZv weivRgvb| KviLvbvq e¨eüZ Avg`vbxK…Z Møvm wUDe, is I c¨vwKs mvgMÖxmn mewKQzi g~j¨ 
A¯^vfvweKfv‡e e„w× †c‡q‡Q| Ab¨w`‡K we`y¨r-Gi †jvW‡mwWs I M¨v‡mi AcÖZzjZvi Rb¨ Drcv`b evavMÖ¯’ 
I ÿwZMÖ¯’ n‡”Q| ms‡ÿ‡c ej‡Z n‡j me©‡ÿ‡ÎB Aw¯’iZv| GZ`m‡Z¡I cwiPvjKgÛjxi mywPwšÍZ c`‡¶c 
Ges ‡Kv¤úvwbi me©¯Í‡i wb‡qvwRZ Kg©KZ©v †_‡K kÖwgK‡`i AvšÍwiK cÖ‡Póvq mvd‡j¨i aviv Ae¨vnZ ivLv 
m¤¢e n‡q‡Q| weMZ eQ‡ii Zzjbvq Drcv`b I weμq Avkvbyiæc e„w× cvIqvq mKj kÖwgK, Kg©Pvix I 
Kg©KZ©v‡`i AvšÍwiK ab¨ev` Rvbvw”Q| Z‡e fwel¨‡Zi fvj g›` wbf©i Ki‡Q we‡k¦i A_©‰bwZK Ae¯’v I 
KvuPvgv‡ji cÖZzjZvi Dc‡i| hv‡nvK, Avcbviv memgq Avgv‡`i mg_©b I mn‡hvMxZv w`‡q Avm‡Qb Ges 
fwel¨‡ZI Avkv KiwQ| 

cwi‡k‡l Avwg ‡Kv¤úvwbi AMÖMwZ I DbœwZi Rb¨ gnvb Avjøvn-Zv-qvjvi Kv‡Q mvnvh¨ Kvgbv KiwQ|

ab¨ev`v‡šÍ,

Gg, G, gvmy`
‡Pqvig¨vb



DIRECTORS’ REPORT

wemwgjøvwni ingvwbi ivwng,
m¤§vwbZ †kqvi‡nvìvie„›`,
Avm&mvjvgy-AvjvBKyg Iqv in&gvZyjøvn|
‡Kv¤úvwbi cwiPvjKgÛjxi c¶ †_‡K 2021-2022Bs A_©-eQ‡ii evwl©K cªwZ‡e`b, wbixw¶Z wnmve I 
wbix¶Ke„‡›`i cªwZ‡e`b Avcbv‡`i m`q we‡ePbv Ges Aby‡gv`‡bi Rb¨ Dc¯’vcb Kiv n‡jv|

1| wkí `„wófw½ I †Kv¤úvwbi welqvw`i Ae¯’v t
1.1| cwiwPwZ t
1981Bs mv‡j MvRxcyi¯’ Kvwjqv‰Ki _vbvi P›`ªvq †Kv¤úvwbwU ¯’vwcZ nq Ges 1984 mv‡ji RyjvB †_‡K Gi 
evwbwR¨K Drcv`b ïiæ nq| dvg©v GBW&m wjwg‡UW ïaygvÎ BD.Gm.wc UvBc-1 (USP Type-I) wbDUªvj Møvm 
G¨v¤úyj (Neutral Glass Ampoule) Drcv`b K‡i †`kxq I eûRvwZK Jla †Kv¤úvwb¸‡jv‡Z AZ¨všÍ mybv‡gi 
mv‡_ mieivn K‡i Avm‡Q| KviLvbvi Rwgi †gvU AvqZb 17,280 eM©dyU, hvi g‡a¨ bxP Zjvq 12,212 eM©dyU 
Ges †`vZjvq 4,650 eM©dyU GjvKv Drcv`b, ¸`vg I mswkøó Kv‡R e¨eüZ n‡”Q|

1.2| gvbe m¤ú` t
‡Kv¤úvwb‡Z eZ©gv‡b Kg©KZ©v, Kg©Pvix I ¯’vqx-A¯’vqx kªwgKmn me©‡gvU 98 Rb wb‡qvwRZ Av‡Qb| cªwZôv‡bi 
mKj ch©v‡qi Kg©KZ©v, Kg©Pvix I kªwgKM‡Yi g‡a¨ mym¤úK© eRvq i‡q‡Q| ev¯Íe AwfÁZv AR©‡bi gva¨‡g G 
Rbej w`‡b w`‡b gvbe m¤ú‡` cwiYZ n‡q‡Q| 

1.3| Drcv`b I weμqt
mviv we‡k¦i gZb G‡`‡kI G¨v¤úy‡ji Pvwn`v μgk †e‡oB P‡j‡Q| †Kv¤úvwb cªwZwôZ nIqvi ci eZ©gvb eQ‡iB 
m‡e©v”P Drcv`b I weμq Ki‡Z mg_© n‡q‡Q| MZ eQi Drcv`b wQj 1,250.02 j¶ wcm G¨v¤úyj I bxU weμq 
n‡qwQj 2,802.92 j¶ UvKv| Av‡jvP¨ eQ‡i Drcv`b n‡q‡Q 1,464.16 j¶ wcm G¨v¤úyj I bxU weμq n‡q‡Q 
3,230.48 j¶ UvKv, hv MZ eQ‡ii Zyjbvq h_vμ‡g 17.13% Ges 15.25% †ekx| D‡jøL¨ †h, Avgv‡`i 
G¨v¤ú~j dwg©s †gwkb¸‡jvi g‡a¨ wZbwU AwZ cyivZb, ZvB G¸‡jvi i¶bv‡e¶b LiP w`b w`b e„w× cv‡”Q| GQvov 
D³ †gwk‡bi I‡fb¸‡jvI e¨env‡ii †¶‡Î cªvq Abyc‡hvMx n‡q covq 2020 m‡bi †k‡l BD‡ivc n‡Z GKwU 
I‡fb Avg`vbx Kiv n‡q‡Q hv 2021 m‡bi ïiæ †_‡K m¤ú~b©fv‡e mwμq| G‡Z K‡i AcPq nªvm †c‡q‡Q Ges evwl©K 
Drcv`b ¶gZv M‡o cªvq 1 †KvwU wcm e„w× †c‡q‡Q| G‡¶‡Î Avgv‡`i AviI `ywU I‡fb cª‡qvRb| ZvB ¯’vbxq 
GKwU †Kv¤úvwb n‡Z I‡fb μq Kiv n‡q‡Q hv 2022 m‡bi †k‡li w`‡K m¤ú~b© fv‡e mwμq n‡e e‡j Avgiv 
Avkvev`x| D³ I‡fb mdjfv‡e Kvh©Kix n‡j cieZ©xwUI ¯’vbxqfv‡e ms‡hvRb Kiv n‡e Bb&kvAvjøvn&|

hw`I G¨v¤úy‡ji Pvwn`v μgk †e‡oB P‡j‡Q, Z‡e Avmbœ A_©eQ‡ii `„wófw½ Lye GKUv BwZevPK g‡b n‡”Q bv| Gi 
KviY g~jZ BD‡iv‡c f~-ivR‰bwZK Aw¯’iZvi cªfve mviv wek¦mn evsjv‡`‡kI cªKUfv‡e msKUgq Ae¯’v m„wó 
K‡i‡Q| cªwZ‡e`‡bi 2 bs †mKk‡b Gi we¯ÍvwiZ D‡jøL Av‡Q| Avgiv mK‡jB AvcªvY †Póv Pvwj‡q hvw”Q hv‡Z 
AvMvgx‡Z †Kv¤úvwbi Ae¯’v AviI DbœwZ Ki‡Z m¶g nB| Ge¨vcv‡i mswkøó mK‡ji mvwe©K mn‡hvwMZv GKvšÍ 
Kvg¨|

1.4 cY¨wfwËK cvid‡g©Ýt
‡Kv¤úvwbi Drcvw`Z g~j cY¨ ïaygvÎ GKwUB, Zv n‡jv wbDUªvj Møvm G¨v¤úyj| Gi wfZ‡i mvBR wfwËK i‡q‡Q gyjZ 
7 (mvZ) cªKvi - 1Gg.Gj, 2Gg.Gj, 3 Gg.Gj, 5Gg.Gj, 10Gg.Gj, 20Gg.Gj, Ges 25 Gg.Gj| Møv‡mi 
evwn¨K iO 2(`yB) cªKvi - G¨v¤^vi Ges wK¬qvi| cªwZ eQi mvBRwfwËK ev Møv‡mi evwn¨K iO wfwËK Pvwn`v Ges 
Drcv`b g~jZ wbf©i K‡i †μZvMb, A_©vr †`kxq I eûRvwZK Jla †Kv¤úvwb¸‡jv, Ges evRv‡i B‡ÄKk‡bi 
Pvwn`vi Dci| hvi Kvi‡Y G‡KK eQ‡ii iO/mvBRwfwËK cvid‡g©Ý Ab¨ eQ‡ii mv‡_ mvgÄm¨c~Y© bq| myZivs, 
eQiwfwËK Zyjbvg~jK cvid‡g©Ý we‡kølY Kiv Abvek¨K|
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2| Avw_©K djvdjt
MZ 7 (mvZ) eQ‡ii Zyjbvg~jK Avw_©K djvdj wb‡gœ cª`Ë n‡jvt
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Sl. Particulars 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 
1 Production (in lac pcs.) 839.98 937.19 1,123.67 1,232.34 1,234.80 1,250.02 1,464.16 
2 Net Sales (Tk. in lac) 1,521.36 1,802.37 2,349.93 2,490.55 2,695.69 2,802.92 3,230.48 
3 Cost of Goods Sold (COGS) (Tk. in lac) 983.76 1,132.20 1,435.99 1,508.51 1,627.17 1,741.40 2,189.30 
4 COGS Percentage on Sales (%) 64.66% 62.82% 61.11% 60.57% 60.36% 62.13% 67.77% 
5 Gross Profit (Tk. in lac) 537.60 670.17 913.94 982.04 1,068.52 1,061.53 1,041.18 
6 Gross Profit Margin (%) 35.34% 37.18% 38.89% 39.43% 39.64% 37.87% 32.23% 
7 Net Profit/(Loss) before Tax (Tk. in lac) 329.44 436.77 626.79 644.14 699.66 653.55 535.44 
8 Net Profit/(Loss) Margin before Tax (%) 21.65% 24.23% 26.67% 25.86% 25.95% 23.32% 16.57% 
9 Net Profit after Tax (Tk. in lac) 234.72 295.69 470.10 483.11 524.75 502.59 347.64 

10 Income Tax (Tk. in lac) 82.36 141.09 156.70 161.04 174.91 147.05 185.08 
11 Earnings Per Share (EPS) (Tk.) 7.52 9.48 15.07 15.48 16.82 16.11 11.14 
12 Reserve & Surplus Fund (Tk. in lac) 1,037.14 1,233.32 1,585.27 1,905.76 2,263.56 2,597.82 2,771.52 
13 Fixed Assets (W.D.Value) (Tk. in lac) 652.57 662.12 862.79 788.30 741.19 753.97 722.75 
14 Current Assets : Current Liabilities 1 : 0.51 1 : 0.43 1 : 0.40 1 : 0.31 1 : 0.24 1 : 0.19 1 : 0.23 
15 NAV Per Share (Tk.) 43.24 49.53 60.81 71.08 82.54 93.26 98.83 
16 NOCF Per Share (Tk.) 6.39 4.09 12.51 8.05 13.04 10.07 10.85 
17 Dividend (%) 30%C 35%C 50%C 50%C 50%C 50%C 50%C 
18 Total Cash Dividend (Tk. in lac) 93.60 109.20 156.00 156.00 156.00 156.00 156.00 
19 Share Price as on June 30 of FY (Tk.) 218.00 273.50 688.60 607.60 408.10 397.90 815.00 
20 Price-Earnings (P/E) Ratio 28.99 28.85 45.69 39.25 24.26 24.70 73.16 

 



Note: Despite 15.25% positive growth in Sales in FY 2021-22, the Net Profit has significantly 
reduced during the same year mostly due to adoption of some accounting principles which are 
explained in detail under sub-section no. 2.1 (2.1) of this report. However, FY 2022-23 is not looking 
good so far and we foresee severe downward trend on profitability as the ongoing geo-political 
conflict in Europe has caused global and national energy crises, particularly electricity, gas and 
fuel. Despite high demand for our ampoules, there’s been severe hamper in production resulting 
from frequent electricity load shedding and shortage of gas & fuel supply. Expenses, especially gas 
consumption, fuel for production, packing materials, imported raw materials (glass tubes) and 
printing materials have significantly increased due to inflation, price hike by the suppliers, and 
drastic devaluation of BD Taka against US Dollar. Besides, selling price of ampoules remained 
unchanged due to severe competition with the local and foreign suppliers. To stay competitive, 
increasing the selling price has not been possible. 

Mentionable, the financial performance of the Company is not comparable with the peer industry as 
the competing companies are all private and their financial data are not publicly available.

2.1 ‰ÎgvwmK Ges evwl©K Avw_©K djvd‡ji g‡a¨ D‡jøL‡hvM¨ cv_©‡K¨i weeiYt

There’s been a significant variance between annual financial statements of FY 2021-22 and FY 
2020-21, including between quarterly and annual financial performances of FY 2021-22. The main 
reasons are mostly due to application of some accounting principles and reclassification of an asset 
into expense for this reporting year according to the guidance and recommendation of the statutory 
auditor. These were not considered in previous year and in quarterly statements of the reporting 
year. The reasons for significant variance are explained below: 

 Application of Deferred Tax Expense and Deferred Tax Liability 
 The Company always submitted its Income Tax return as per section 82BB (Universal 

Self-Assessment) under the ITO, 1984, and based on all the tax assessments of previous 
years, there was no material effect on the depreciation expenses of the Company. Hence, the 
Company did not find it applicable to disclose deferred tax related provisions in the financial 
statements. However, in order to comply with the accounting principle as per paragraph 58 and 
81(g) of IAS 12, the Company has incorporated deferred tax related disclosures in the 
Statements of Profit or Loss and Financial Position starting from this reporting financial year 
2021-2022 (Note 15.02 to the financial statements). This resulted in reducing the Net Profit 
after Tax (NPAT) by Tk.271,546 for the FY 2021-2022 compared to previous year.

 Application of Provision for Bad Debt Expenses
 The Company did not keep provision for bad debt expenses on its trade receivables for 

previous financial years. However, starting from this reporting year, considering the after effects 
of Covid-19 as well as the effects of ongoing geo-political conflict in Europe, the Company is 
applying 1% (one percent) of the trade receivables as provision for bad debt expenses in 
compliance with para 5.5.15 of IFRS 9 (Note 13.00). This resulted in reducing the Net Profit 
before Tax by Tk.1,235,125 for the FY 2021-2022 compared to previous year.

 Changes in Accounting Estimates with respect to Provision for Gratuity
 The Company kept provision for gratuity at around 25~35% (depending on payment during the 

year) of the total estimate every year which was not adequate as per IAS 37. The best estimate 
is to not keep any shortfall in provision for any expense that the Company is obligated to pay in 
future. Hence, the Company has kept 100% of the total estimate as provision for gratuity of 
Tk.20,596,960 as on June 30, 2022 (Note 13.00). As a result, around 65~75% shortfall of 
previous financial years have also added up to the expense during the reporting year, thus 
significantly reducing the Net Profit before Tax by Tk.17,000,803 (Note 19.00 & 20.00) for the 
FY 2021-2022 compared to previous year.
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 Write-off of an unsettled VAT Case that was shown as an asset since FY 2015-16
 Referring to first paragraph of section 5.0 (5.0) of this report and Note 38.01 to the financial 

statements, an amount of Tk.1,858,345 was illogically adjusted from the Company’s current 
account of VAT against a case filed in 2010. As per management it was unjustifiable and 
refundable, hence the adjusted amount was kept in the Company’s asset account under 
“Security Deposit” since FY 2015-16. However, as the case kept on dragging aimlessly with no 
positive outcome and the chance of recovering the amount is negligible, the Board decided to 
write it off. This resulted in further reduction of Net Profit before Tax by Tk.1,858,345 for the 
reporting year.

3| e‡Kqv AveMvix ïé t
1984-1989 A_©-eQimg~‡ni 12.39 j¶ UvKvi e‡Kqv AveMvix ïé msμvšÍ cªwZ‡e`b weMZ eQimg~‡n 
Avcbv‡`i‡K AewnZ Kiv n‡q‡Q| gvgjvwU GLbI wb¯úwË nqwb|

4| AvqKi t
(K) Avw_©K eQi 2004-2005 (AvqKi eQi 2005-2006) evwl©K mvaviY mfvq m¤§vwbZ †kqvi‡nvìvi KZ©…K 
Aby‡gvw`Z wbixw¶Z wnmve Abyhvqx 15,86,207.00 UvKv AvqKi cªvc¨, hvi wecix‡Z 10,34,452.00 UvKv 
AwMªg AvqKi mgš^q Kiv nq Ges evKx UvKv Avgv‡`i c~e©eZ©x eQ‡ii cªvc¨ †_‡K mgš^q K‡i mwVK mg‡q 
AvqKi wiUvb© `vwLj Kiv n‡q‡Q| Dc-Ki Kwgkbvi g‡nv`q A‡hŠw³K I GKZidvfv‡e KwZcq LiP AMªvn¨ 
K‡i 24,72,728.00 UvKv AvqKi avh©&h K‡i‡Qb Ges ïaygvÎ AwMªg AvqK‡ii 10,34,452.00 UvKv wnmvefy³ 
K‡i‡Qb| wZwb 14,38,276.00 UvKvi mv‡_ my` 1,64,019.00 UvKv †hvM K‡i †gvU 16,02,295.00 UvKvi 
GKLvbv wWgvÛ‡bvU †cªiY K‡i‡Qb| Avgiv AwZwi³ Kwgkbvi Ae U¨v‡·m (Avcxj) g‡nv`‡qi Kv‡Q 
27-04-2008Bs Zvwi‡L Avcxj `v‡qi K‡iwQ| welqwU we‡ePbvi Rb¨ Avgiv MZ 18-08-2008Bs Ges 
18-05-2010Bs ZvwiL ZvMv`vcÎ †cªiY K‡iI †Kvb dj cvBwb| D‡ëv Dc-Ki Kwgkbvi g‡nv`q cybivq 
28-08-2014Bs Zvwi‡L c~‡e©i 16,02,295.00 UvKvi `vexbvgvwU †cªiY K‡ib| †Kv¤úvwb †bvwUk Mªn‡Yi mv‡_ 
mv‡_ wba©viYx Av‡`‡ki mvwU©dvBW Kwci Rb¨ Av‡e`b K‡i GLb ch©šÍ †Kvb mvwU©dvBW Kwc cvqwb| 

(L)  Avw_©K eQi 2005-2006 (AvqKi eQi 2006-2007) evwl©K mvaviY mfvq wbixw¶Z wnmve Aby‡gvw`Z 
nIqvi ci mwVK mg‡q AvqKi wiUvb© `vwLj Kiv nq| Dc-Ki Kwgkbvi g‡nv`q PyovšÍ wba©viYx Av‡`k Òk~b¨Ó 
`vexbvgv †cªiY K‡ib| A_P 3 eQi ci A_©vr 29-04-2010Bs Zvwi‡L Dc-Ki Kwgkbvi g‡nv`q 
A‡hŠw³Kfv‡e e‡Kqv AvqKi 12,38,347.00 UvKvi mv‡_ 2,41,954.00 UvKv my` †hvM K‡i †gvU 
14,80,301.00 UvKv cwi‡kva Kivi Rb¨ †bvwUk †cªiY K‡ib| †Kv¤úvwb Awej‡¤^ we¯ÍvwiZ e¨vL¨vmn †bvwUkwU 
evwZ‡ji Rb¨ Aby‡iva Rvbvb; wKš‘ Dc-Ki Kwgkbvi g‡nv`q `xN© 4 eQi c‡i A_©vr 28-08-2014 Zvwi‡L 
14,80,301.00 UvKvi `vexbvgvwU cybivq †cªiY K‡ib| eva¨ n‡q Avgiv 10-09-2014Bs Ges cybivq 
08-11-2016Bs Zvwi‡L g~j Av‡`‡ki mvwU©dvBW Kwc †cªi‡Yi Rb¨ Aby‡iva Kwi; wKš‘ A`¨vewa Zv cvIqv 
hvqwb|     

(M) Avw_©K eQi 2006-2007 (AvqKi eQi 2007-2008) evwl©K mvaviY mfvq wbixw¶Z wnmve Aby‡gvw`Z 
nIqvi ci h_vmg‡q AvqKi wiUvb© `vwLj Kiv n‡q‡Q| 25,81,974/- UvKv AvqKi cªvc¨ n‡j D³ eQ‡i 
†Kv¤úvwbi cwi‡kvwaZ AwMªg AvqKi 32,75,669/- UvKv †_‡K Dnv mgš^‡qi ci 6,93,695/- UvKv †ekx Rgv 
wQj| K‡qK eQi ci A_©vr 21-10-2010Bs Zvwi‡L †WcywU Kwgkbvi g‡nv`q nVvr K‡i A‡hŠw³Kfv‡e 
53,01,040/- UvKvi GKwU †bvwUk †cªiY K‡ib| D³ †bvwU‡ki wecix‡Z †Kv¤úvwb wba©viYx Av‡`k I mvwU©dvBW 
Kwci Rb¨ Av‡e`b K‡i Ges me©‡kl 08-11-2016Bs Zvwi‡L ZvMv`vcÎ cª`vb Ki‡jI A`¨vewa †Kvb 
mvwU©dvBW Kwc cvIqv hvqwb|
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5| f¨vU (g~mK) t
2008-2009Bs A_©eQ‡i ¯’vbxq ivR¯^ AwWU Awa`ß‡ii AwWU wUg AwZwi³ †iqvZ Mªnb eve` 5,17,762/- 
UvKv I g~mK duvwK eve` 13,57,252/- UvKv, †gvU 18,75,014/- UvKvi AvcwË DÌvcb K‡i 18-06-2010Bs 
Zvwi‡L `ywU `vexbvgv †Kv¤úvwb‡K †cªiY K‡ib| Ge¨vcv‡i we¯ÍvwiZ Z_¨vw` I mswkøó mKj cªgvbvw`mn 
24-06-2010Bs Zvwi‡L f¨vU KZ©…c‡¶i `ß‡i `vwLj Kiv nq| f¨vU KZ©…c¶ mg¯Í KvMRcÎ ch©v‡jvPbv K‡i 
AwWU wU‡gi AvcwË `ywU A‡hŠw³K I wfwËnxb e‡j †g‡b †bb; wKš‘ `xN© mv‡o 4 eQi ci f¨vU KZ©…c¶ 
29-10-2014Bs Zvwi‡L `vexwU cybivq †cªiY K‡ib| Avgiv c‡Îi gva¨‡g `vex¸‡jv †h wb®úwË n‡q‡Q, Dnvi 
we¯ÍvwiZ e¨vL¨v cª`vb Kwi; wKš‘ f¨vU KZ©…c¶ Avevi 20 gvm ci A_©vr 09-06-2016Bs Zvwi‡L 2wU `vexbvgvi 
wecix‡Z 18,58,345/- UvKv Avgv‡`i PjwZ wnmve †_‡K GKZidv I A‡hŠw³Kfv‡e mgš^q K‡ib, hv 
AMªnb‡hvM¨ I evwZj‡hvM¨| G cªm‡½ MZ 14-06-2016Bs Zvwi‡L †Rvov‡jv AvcwËmnKv‡i Avgv‡`i b¨vh¨ 
e¨vL¨vi Av‡jv‡K welqwU wb¯úwË Kivi Rb¨ Av‡e`b Kiv nq, hv GLbI cªwμqvaxb i‡q‡Q| Z‡e GB welq weMZ 
eQi¸‡jv‡Z A‡bK †hvMv‡hvM Ges K‡_vcK_b Kivi ciI hLb †Kv‡bv BwZevPK mvov cvIqv hvqwb, cwiPvjbv 
cl©` Av‡jvP¨ eQ‡i GB cy‡iv cwigvb Li‡Pi LvZvq †bqvi wm×všÍ wb‡q‡Qb|

GQvovI 2012-13Bs A_© eQi n‡Z 2016-17Bs A_© eQi ch©šÍ mg‡qi g~mK wbix¶v `j KZ©…K wbixw¶Z 
cªwZ‡e`b Abyhvqx Kwgkbvi, Kv÷gm& G·vBR I f¨vU, XvKv DËi Kwgkbv‡iU g~mK cwinvi eve` me©‡gvU 
63,55,844.84 (my` e¨ZxZ) UvKv Av`v‡qi Rb¨ g~j¨ ms‡hvRb Ki AvBb, 1991 aviv-55 Gi Dcaviv-1 
Abyhvqx dvg©v GBW&m wjt-Gi weiæ‡× GKwU `vexbvgv m¤^wjZ KviY `k©v‡bvi †bvwUk Rvwi K‡ib| D³ †bvwU‡ki 
†cªw¶‡Z e¨e¯’vcbv cwiPvjK g‡nv`q D³ `vexbvgv †h A‡hŠw³K I wfwËnxb Zvi ¯^c‡¶ we¯ÍvwiZ e¨vL¨vmn 
e¨w³MZ ïbvbx‡Z nvwRivi my‡hvM †P‡q MZ 11-10-2020Bs Zvwi‡L Kwgkbvi eivei GKwU cÎ †cªiY K‡ib| 
D³ c‡Îi †cªw¶‡Z Kwgkbvi g‡nv`q 24-11-2020Bs Zvwi‡L ïbvbxi ZvwiL avh© Ki‡j †Kv¤úvbxi cªwZwbwa 
D³ ïbvbx‡Z nvwRi n‡q Kwgkbvi g‡nv`‡qi wbKU wewfbœ hyw³ Dc¯’vc‡bi gva¨‡g A‡hŠw³K I wfwËnxb 
`vexbvgv n‡Z Ae¨vnwZ `v‡bi Aby‡iva Rvbv‡j wZwb welqwU we‡ePbvaxb I cªwμqvaxb Ae¯’vq ïbvbx mgvß 
K‡ib| Gici P~ovšÍ wm×v‡šÍi Rb¨ GKvwaK wPwVcÎ †`Iqv nq| Ae‡k‡l †Kv¤úvwb 30-03-2022 Zvwi‡L 
KZ©…c‡¶i Kv‡Q wjwLZfv‡e GKwU we¯ÍvwiZ wee„wZ Ges ¯úóxKiY wPwV †ck K‡i hv‡Z e¨vL¨v Kiv nq †h 
†Kv¤úvwbwU mKj f¨vU cª`vb K‡i‡Q; wKš‘ Zviv 17-05-2022 Zvwi‡L Avgv‡`i GKwU ms‡kvwaZ wWgvÛ †bvU 
cvVvq hv‡Z 29-05-2022 Zvwi‡L AviI GKwU ïbvwbi weavbmn Zv‡`i `vwe 63,55,844.84 UvKv †_‡K 
21,47,984.00 UvKvq Kwg‡q †`Iqv nq| †Kv¤úvwbi cªwZwbwa e¨e¯’vcbv cwiPvj‡Ki Øviv wjwLZ 
11-10-2020 Zvwi‡Li wPwVi GKwU Kwcmn ïbvwb‡Z Dcw¯’Z n‡qwQj GB e¨vL¨v w`‡q †h †Kv¤úvwb 
†Kv‡bvfv‡eB †Kv‡bv cwigvY f¨v‡Ui †Ljvwc wQj bv| Gici Kwgkbvi welqwU AviI mywbw`©ófv‡e †`Lvi B”Qv 
cªKvk K‡ib| me©‡kl †gŠwLK Ges †Uwj‡dv‡b K‡_vcK_‡bi wfwË‡Z †Kv¤úvwbi e¨e¯’vcbv cwiPvjK 
10-08-2022 Zvwi‡L KZ©…c‡¶i mvg‡b e¨w³MZfv‡e nvwRi nb Ges we¯ÍvwiZfv‡e e¨vL¨v K‡ib †h †Kv¤úvwb 
KZ©…K GB AwZwi³ f¨vU cª`v‡bi `vex A‡hŠw³K, AMªnY‡hvM¨ Ges evwZj‡hvM¨| gvgjvwU GL‡bv wb®úwË nqwb|

6| ¯̂Zš¿ cwiPvjK cybtwb‡qvMt
Rbve †gvt †gvwgbyj nK Xvjx 01-01-2020Bs ZvwiL †_‡K weMZ wZb eQi ¯^Zš¿ cwiPvjK wn‡m‡e AZ¨všÍ 
`¶Zvi mv‡_ Zuvi `vwqZ¡ I KZ©e¨ cvjb K‡i Avm‡Qb| AvBbvby&hvqx wZwb cieZ©x wZb eQ‡ii Rb¨ A_©vr 
01-01-2023Bs ZvwiL †_‡K 31-12-2025Bs ZvwiL ch©šÍ cybtwb‡qv‡Mi †hvM¨ nIqvq cwiPvjKe„›` Zuv‡K 
wb‡qv‡Mi mycvwik K‡i‡Qb|

7| cwiPvjKM‡Yi Aemi MªnY I cybtwb‡qvMt
‡Kv¤úvwbi AvwU©‡Kjm Ae G‡mvwm‡qk‡bi 135 Aby‡”Q` Abyhvqx Pμvbyμ‡g cwiPvjKgÛjx n‡Z wg‡mm kvnxb~i 
†eex Ges wg‡mm kvnxb~i †eMg GeQi Aemi MªnY K‡i‡Qb| Zuviv cybtwb‡qv‡Mi †hvM¨ nIqvq wb‡qvM cªvwßi 
Rb¨ AvMªn cªKvk K‡i‡Qb|
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8| ‡Kv¤úvwbi wbix¶v e¨e¯’vt  
‡Kv¤úvwbi wbix¶v KwgwUi †Pqvig¨vb - Rbve †gvt †gvwgbyj nK Xvjx, BwÛ‡c‡Û›U WvB‡i±i, Ges †nW Ad 
B›Uvibvj AwWU GÛ Kgcøv‡qÝ - Rbve kvwdDj nvmvb AvwkK, Gw·wKDwUf WvB‡i±i, Zuviv wbwi¶v KwgwUi I 
Af¨šÍixY wbix¶vi Kvh©Kjvc, `vwqZ¡ I KZ©e¨ AZ¨šÍ `¶Zvi mv‡_ cvjb K‡i Avm‡Qb| Av‡jvP¨ 
2021-2022Bs A_© eQ‡i D³ KwgwUi †Kvb weiƒc cªwZ‡e`b wQj bv, hv AwWU KwgwUi †Pqvig¨vb g‡nv`‡qi 
cªwZ‡e`‡b mwbœ‡ewkZ Kiv n‡q‡Q|

9| cwiPvjKgÛjxi cvwikªwgK/m¤§vbx I †evW© wgwUs :
‡`‡ki mvwe©K Ae¯’v Ges Ab¨vb¨ mKj jvfRbK †Kv¤úvwbi †`qv cvwikªwgK we‡ePbv K‡i, 01-07-2022Bs 
ZvwiL †_‡K e¨e¯’vcbv cwiPvjK g‡nv`‡qi gvwmK cvwikªwgK 7,00,000/- UvKvmn Ab¨vb¨ my‡hvM myweav 
mg‡qvc‡hvMx Kivi Rb¨ †evW© mycvwik K‡i‡Qb| GQvov Ab¨vb¨ cwiPvjKgÛjx‡K ïiæ †_‡KB avivevwnKfv‡e 
†Kv¤úvwb gvwmK m¤§vbx w`‡q Avm‡Q| G †cªw¶‡Z 01-07-2022Bs ZvwiL †_‡K †Pqvig¨vb g‡nv`q‡K 
2,00,000/- UvKv Ges `yB WvB‡i±i g‡nv`q‡K 80,000/- UvKv K‡i gvwmK m¤§vbx cª`v‡bi Rb¨ †evW© mycvwik 
K‡i‡Qb| Av‡jvP¨ A_©eQ‡i cwiPvjbv cl©‡`i mvwe©K cvwikªwgK/m¤§vbx Ges Gw·wKEwUfM‡bi †eZbvw` 
†÷U‡g›U †bvU bs 23.00 Ges †evW© wgwUs-Gi msL¨v, Dcw¯’wZ I wd †bvU bs 24.00-G mwbœ‡ewkZ Kiv n‡q‡Q| 

10| jf¨vsk †Nvlbv t
Av‡jvP¨ 2021-2022Bs A_© eQ‡i Ki c~e©eZ©x 535.44 j¶ UvKv bxU g~bvdv AwR©Z n‡q‡Q| Av‡jvP¨ eQ‡ii 
Ki cieZ©x 347.64 j¶ UvKv g~bvdv †_‡K 156.00 j¶ UvKv, A_©vr 44.87%, wewb‡qvMKvix‡`i ¯^v‡_© †kqvi 
cªwZ 50% nv‡i bM` jf¨vsk cwiPvjbv cl©` mycvwik K‡i‡Qb| evKx 191.64 j¶ UvKv, A_©vr 55.13%, 
Retained Earnings-G †i‡L Zv fwel¨‡Z m¤¢ve¨ BMRE cªKímn Ab¨vb¨ Kg©-cwiKíbvi Kv‡R cwiPvjbv cl©` 
cª‡qvM Ki‡Z cv‡ib|

11| mswewae× wbix¶K (÷¨vUyUwi AwWUi) wb‡qvM I Zuv‡`i cvwikªwgK wba©viYt
2021-2022Bs A_©eQ‡i †gmvm© kwdK emvK GÛ †Kvs, PvU©vW© GKvD›U¨v›Um, 292, Bbvi mvK©yjvi †ivW, 
dwKivcyj, gwZwSj, XvKv, mswewae× wbix¶K wQ‡jb| Zuviv 2022-2023Bs A_©eQ‡ii Rb¨ mswewae× wbix¶K 
wn‡m‡e wb‡qvM jv‡fi B”Qv cªKvk Kivq cwiPvjK cl©` Zuv‡`i cvwikªwgK evwl©K 1,60,000/- UvKv wba©viYc~e©K 
wb‡qv‡Mi mycvwik K‡i‡Qb|  

12| cªwZcvjb wbix¶K (Kgcøv‡qÝ AwWUi) wb‡qvM I Zuv‡`i cvwikªwgK wba©viYt
K‡c©v‡iU Mfv‡b©Ý Gi kZ© cªwZcvj‡bi Rb¨ †gmvm© gv‡jK wmwÏKx Iqvjx, PvU©vW© GKvD›U¨v›Um, 9 wR gwZwSj 
evwbwR¨K GjvKv (3q Zjv), XvKv-1000, Kgcøv‡qÝ AwWUi wn‡m‡e wb‡qvM jv‡fi B”Qv cªKvk Kivq cwiPvjbv 
cl©` Zuv‡`i cvwikªwgK evwl©K 40,000/- UvKv wba©viYc~e©K 2022-2023Bs A_© eQ‡ii Rb¨ cªwZcvjb wbix¶K 
wb‡qv‡Mi mycvwik K‡i‡Qb|

13| wi‡j‡UW cvwU© Uªv‡ÄKkbt  
dvg©v GBW&m wjt G‡·jwmqi Mªæ‡ci GKwU A½ cªwZôvb| GB Mªæ‡ci mswkøó †Kv¤úvwbi mv‡_ †jb‡`‡bi wnmve 
†bvU bs 36.00-G mwbœ‡ewkZ Kiv n‡q‡Q| †jb‡`b¸‡jv arm’s length basis-G †ek wmgxZ AvKv‡i Kiv n‡q 
_v‡K weavq †Kv¤úvwb‡K †Kv‡bv Avw_©K cªwZK~jZvi m¤§yLxb n‡Z nqbv| †Kv¤úvwbi AwWU KwgwU GB 
†jb‡`b¸‡jv cªwZwbqZ ch©‡e¶b Ki‡Qb|  

14| Af¨šÍixY Ges evwn¨K SyuwKmg~n t
‡KvwfW-19 Gi cªfve Ges BD‡iv‡c f~-ivR‰bwZK Aw¯’iZvi Kvi‡Y wKQy †μZv‡`i †_‡K †UªW wiwmfvej&m 
Av`v‡qi cwigvY AwbqwgZ n‡q‡Q| wKQy †μZv‡`i cwiPvjbv cl©‡`I cwieZ©b G‡m‡Q, hvi Kvi‡Y Zuv‡`i mv‡_ 
fwel¨Z †jb‡`b wb‡q AwbðqZv i‡q‡Q| Z‡e cvIbv Av`vq Kivi h_vmva¨ e¨e¯’v Mªnb Kiv n‡”Q| mswewae× 
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wbix¶‡Ki civgk© Ges e¨ve¯’vcbve„‡›`i wm×všÍ Abyhvqx 1% †Ljvwc nIqvi weavb Av‡jvP¨ eQ‡i ivLv n‡q‡Q| 
GQvovI Ab¨vb¨ SyuwKmg~‡ni we¯ÍvwiZ e¨vL¨v GB cªwZ‡e`‡bi †mKkb 2.0 Ges Avw_©K wee„wZi †bvU bs 
41.02-G mwbœ‡ewkZ Kiv n‡q‡Q|  
 
15| cwiPvjbv cl©‡`i Ab¨vb¨ wee„wZ t
As far as the knowledge of the Directors is concerned, they are also reporting that:
 The financial statements prepared by the management of the Company present true and fair 

view of Company’s state of affairs, result of its operations, cash flows, and changes in equity. 
 Proper books of accounts of the Company have been maintained.
 Appropriate accounting policies have been followed in preparing the financial statements and 

that the accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.
 The Financial statements were prepared in accordance with International Accounting Standard 

(IAS) and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as applicable in Bangladesh. 
 The internal control system is sound in design and effectively implemented and monitored. 
 There is commitment to protect the interests of all shareholders, including the rights of the 

minority shareholders, while promoting integrity, transparency, and accountability. 
 There is no doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. 
16| Management’s Discussion & Analysis:
The Company complies with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and International 
Accounting Standards (IAS) as applicable in Bangladesh, as well as any relevant local norms and 
regulations while preparing financial statements. Management has made judgments, estimates 
and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of 
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Accounting 
principles, estimates, and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis and as per the 
guidance and recommendation of the statutory auditors. Revisions to accounting estimates are 
recognized prospectively. The applicable accounting policies are disclosed in Note 1.08 to the 
Financial Statements. 
 
Apart from that, changes in accounting policies and estimation that have had an effect on the 
financials of the Company have been clearly described in sub-section 2.1 (2.1) of this report. 
Comparative analysis of financials of last seven years of the Company and with the peer industry, 
including financial and economic scenario of the country and the globe, have been briefly 
addressed in section 2.0 (2.0). Risks and concerns have been addressed in section 14.0 (14.0) 
whereas forecast for the Company’s performance and financials has been addressed in section 
18.0 (18.0) of this report.

17| K‡c©v‡iU Mfv‡b©Ý Gi kZ© cªwZcvjbt
wmwKDwiwUR GÛ G·‡PÄ Kwgkb Gi 03-06-2018Bs Zvwi‡Li SEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/ 
207/Admin/80 bs †bvwUwd‡Kk‡bi Annexure-C †Z D‡jøwLZ wb‡`©kvejxi, †h mKj kZ© †Kv¤úvwbi †¶‡Î 
cª‡hvR¨, me¸‡jv kZ© cªwZcvjb m¤úbœ Kiv n‡q‡Q| Annexure-I-VIII Gi g‡a¨ †Kv¤úvwbi K‡c©v‡iU 
Mfv‡b©Ý Gi Ae¯’vb mwbœ‡ewkZ Kiv n‡q‡Q|

18| PjwZ (2022-2023Bs) A_©eQ‡ii Ae ’̄v Ges c~e©vfvmt
PjwZ A_©eQ‡i †Kv¤úvwb Zyjbvg~jK Kg jvfRb‡Ki w`‡K G‡Mv‡”Q Ges AvMvgx eQi ch©šÍ Gi c~e©vfvm 
BwZevPK g‡b n‡”Q bv| 2021-22 A_©eQ‡ii RyjvB n‡Z †m‡Þ¤^i, GB 3 gv‡m Drcv`b n‡qwQj 3.70 
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†KvwU wcm& G¨v¤úyj I wbU weμq n‡qwQj 8.57 †KvwU UvKv| eZ©gvb 2022-23 A_©eQ‡i GKB mgq 
Drcv`b n‡q‡Q 3.51 †KvwU wcm G¨v¤úyj I wbU weμq n‡q‡Q 7.31 †KvwU UvKv, hv MZ eQ‡ii Zyjbvq 
h_vμ‡g 5.14% I 14.70% Kg| Gi g~j KviY  BD‡iv‡c Pjgvb f~-ivR‰bwZK msNvZ ¯^viv wek¦ I 
†`ke¨vcx we`¨yr I R¡vjvbx msKU m„wó K‡i‡Q| Avgv‡`i G¨v¤úy‡ji D”P Pvwn`v _vKv m‡Ë¡I Nb Nb we`¨y‡Zi 
†jvW‡kwWs Ges M¨vm I R¡vjvbx mieiv‡ni NvUwZi d‡j DZ&cv`‡b gvivZ¥K evavi m„wó n‡q‡Q| g~j¨ùxwZ, 
mieivnKvix‡`i g~j¨e„w× Ges gvwK©b Wjv‡ii wecix‡Z †`kxq UvKvi Zxeª gy`ªvnªv‡mi Kvi‡Y Drcv`b e¨q, 
we‡kl K‡i M¨vm I  R¡vjvwb LiP, c¨vwKs DcKiY, Avg`vwbK„Z KuvPvgvj (Møvm wUDe) Ges wcªw›Us mvgMªx 
e¨vcKfv‡e e„w× †c‡q‡Q| GQvov †`wk-we‡`wk mieivnKvix‡`i m‡½ Zxeª cªwZ‡hvwMZvi Kvi‡Y G¨v¤úy‡ji 
weμqg~j¨ AcwiewZ©Z i‡q‡Q| cªwZ‡hvwMZvq wU‡K _vK‡Z wewμi `vg evov‡bv m¤¢e nqwb| G wel‡q 
cªwZ‡e`‡bi †mKkb 2.0 -‡ZI D‡jøL Kiv n‡q‡Q| AvMvgx gvm¸‡jv‡Z Drcv`b I weμq e„w×i Rb¨ AviI 
Avcªvb †Póv Kiv n‡”Q|

19| Auditors’ Opinion: 
“The Company has debit balance with related party of Tk. 27,972,411 shown as other receivable in 
note no. 4.00 in these financial statements, which should be disclosed as related party transaction 
disclosure in note no. 36.00. But, no such disclosure has been made in these financial statements. 
Moreover, no interest is charged/accrued during the year on related party debit balance.”

Emphasis of Matter:
“We draw user’s attention to Note# 8.04 to the financial statements that discloses shareholding 
position of sponsors and directors at 24.22% of paid-up capital as on June 30, 2022 which falls short 
to the minimum required shareholding of 30% of paid-up capital as per BSEC Notification No. BSEC/ 
CMRRCD/2009-193/217/Admin/90 dated 21st May2019. Our opinion is not modified in this matter.”

Company’s Opinion:
During the FY 2021-2022, despite the negative impact of COVID19 pandemic and geo-political 
conflict in Europe on all the debtors, the Company has recovered Tk.2,857,953 and significantly 
reduced the balance of Other Receivables from Tk.32,164,269 (as on 30-06-2021) to 
Tk.29,306,316 (as on 30-06-2022). Apart from the sister concerns under the Excelsior Group, the 
Company has always tried to respect the privacy of all the indebted private limited companies. Rest 
assured, the Company is confident in recovering the debit balance gradually over the ordinary 
course of business, Insha’Allah.

Regarding the joint shareholding of 30% by sponsors & directors of the Company, the Board has 
applied for time extension from BSEC. Given the Company’s share price trend over the past 12 
months, it has been extremely difficult to find suitable and honest investors for directorship in the 
Company because they are not interested to block their huge amount of fund. The existing directors 
and sponsors also do not have that much liquid fund available. However, the Board is continuing to 
try and meet this regulatory requirement as early as practically possible. 

Dcmsnvi t
cwiPvjKgÛjx m¤§vwbZ mKj †kqvi‡nvìvie„›`, †μZvmg~n, mswkøó e¨vsK, weGmBwm I wWGmBmn mKj 
¯Í‡ii Kg©KZ©v-Kg©Pvix-kªwgKe„›` Ges †Kv¤úvwbi Ab¨vb¨ mn‡hvMx cªwZôvbmg~‡ni cªwZ AvšÍwiKfv‡e 
ab¨ev` Ávcb I K„ZÁZv cªKvk Ki‡Qb|

cwiPvjKgÛjxi c‡¶,

dv‡qRyj nvmvb
e¨e¯’vcbv cwiPvjK

16

cwiPvjK gÛjxi cÖwZ‡e`b
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The CEO and CFO’s Certification to the Board
Annexure-A 

[As per condition No. 1(5)(xxvi)]
Date: November 27, 2022

The Board of Directors
Pharma Aids Limited
345 Segun Bagicha,
Dhaka

Subject: Declaration on Financial Statements for the year ended on 30th June, 2022

Dear Sir,

Pursuant to the condition No. 1(5)(xxvi) imposed vide the Commission’s Notification No. 
SEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 Dated 3 June, 2018 issued under section 2CC of the 
Securities and Exchange Ordinance, 1969, we do hereby declare that: 

(1) The Financial Statements of Pharma Aids Limited for the year ended on 30th June, 2022 have 
been prepared in compliance with International Accounting Standards (IAS) or International 
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as applicable in the Bangladesh and any departure 
there from has been adequately disclosed;

(2) The estimates and judgments related to the financial staements were made on a prudent and 
reasonable basis, in order for the financial statements to reveal a true and fair view;

(3) The form and substance of transactions and the Company’s state of affairs have been 
reasonably and fairly presented in its financial statements;

(4) To ensure above, the Company has taken proper and adequate care in installing a system of 
internal control and maintenance of accounting records;

(5) Our internal auditors have conducted periodic audits to provide reasonable assurance that the 
established policies and procedures of the Company were consistently followed ; and 

(6) The management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial 
statements is appropriate and there exists no material uncertainty related to events or 
condition that may cast significant doubt of the Company’s ability to continue as going 
concern.

In this regard, we also certify that: -
(i) We have reviewed the financial statements for the year ended on 30th June, 2022 and that to 

the best of our knowledge and belief:
(a) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material 

fact or contain statements that might be misleading;
(b) these statements collectively present true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are 

in compliance with existing accounting standards and applicable laws. 

(ii) There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the 
Company during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or in violation of the code of conduct for 
the Company’s Board of Directors or its members.

Sincerely yours,

Faizul Hassan  Muhibul Hassan Adil
CEO & Managing Director CFO & Executive Director 
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Annexure-B
                       [Certificate as per condition No. 1(5)(xxvii)]

REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
PHARMA AIDS LIMITED

ON COMPLIANCE OF THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

We have examined the compliance status to the Corporate Governance Code by Pharma Aids 
Limitedfor the year ended on June 30, 2022. This Code relates to the Notification No. 
BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated 3 June 2018 under section 2CC of the 
Bangladesh Security Exchange Commission.

Such compliance with the Corporate Governance Code is the responsibility of the Company. Our 
examination was limited to the procedures and implementation thereof as adopted by the 
Management in ensuring compliance to the conditions of the Corporate Governance Code.

This is a scrutiny and verification and independent audit on compliance of the conditions of the 
Corporate Governance Code as well as the provisions of relevant Bangladesh Secretarial 
Standards (BSS) as adopted by Institute of Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh (ICSB) in so far 
as those standards are not inconsistent with any condition of this Corporate Governance Code.

We state that we have obtained all the information and explanations, which we have required, and 
after due scrutiny and verification thereof, we report that in our opinion:

a) The Company has complied with the conditions of the Corporate Governance Code as 
stipulated in the above mentioned Corporate Governance Code issued by the Commission;

b) The Company has complied with the provisions of the relevant Bangladesh Secretarial 
Standards (BSS) as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh (ICSB) as 
required by this Code;

c) Proper books and records have been kept by the company as required under the Companies 
Act, 1994, the securities laws and other relevant laws;

d) The Governance of the company is highly satisfactory; and

e) The Chairman and directors of the company are given honorarium on a monthly basis.

Place: Dhaka        Malek Siddiqui Wali
Date: November 28, 2022    Chartered Accountants

        Md. Waliullah, FCA
         Managing Partner 

tered Accounta
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Annexure-C

                       [As per condition No. 1(5)(xxvii)]

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMPLIANCE STATUS REPORT ON
PHARMA AIDS LIMITED
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AS ON 30-06-2022

78

73

66

65

65
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PARTICULARS NO. OF SHARES HOLDING PERCENTAGE 

Subsidiary / Associated Companies: --- --- 

Directors: 

1. Mr. M. A. Masud 1,49,500 4.79% 

2. Mr. Faizul Hassan 3,36,000 10.77% 

3. Mrs. Shahinoor Baby 1,00,000 3.21% 

4. Mrs. Shahinoor Begum 1,20,000 3.85% 

Sponsors: 

Late M. A. Kalam 250 0.01% 

Mr. S. A. Nayeem 30,000 0.96% 

Late Nurul Akhter Aurora 20,000 0.64% 

Sub Total  7,55,750 24.22% 

Others: 

Chief Executive Officer (CEO)  
and his spouse and minor children: -- -- 

Chief Financial Officer (CFO)  
and his spouse and minor children: -- -- 

Company Secretary (CS)  
and his spouse and minor children: -- -- 

Head of Internal Audit (HIA)  
and his spouse and minor children: -- -- 

Executives (Top five salaried persons 
other than CEO, CFO, CS, HIA) -- -- 

Shareholders holding 10% or more 
voting right: -- -- 

Institute 4,66,440 14.95% 

General Public 18,97,810 60.83% 

Grand Total 31,20,000 100.00% 
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT FOR THE YEAR 2021-2022
The Audit Committee consists of the following members and the number of meetings held and 
attended during the year is as follows:

Audit Committee Members Meetings Held Attended

Mr. Md. Mominul Hoque Dhali (Independent Director) – Chairman   4

Mrs. Shahinoor Baby (Director) – Member     
4

  4

Mrs. Shahinoor Begum (Director) – Member      4

Mr. K. H. Reza, FCS (Company Secretary) – Secretary     4

The duties and the activities carried out during the year:
• Oversee the financial reporting process and choice of accounting policies and principles;
• Monitor internal audit & compliance process and review adequacy of internal audit function;
• Oversee the determination of audit fees, hiring, and performance of external auditor;
• Hold meeting with the external auditor and also with the management for review of the annual 

and quarterly financial statements before submission to the Board for approval; and
• Review all other discussions, analysis, and activities of the Management regarding disclosures 

in the annual report and Management Letter issued by the statutory auditors.

The Committee reviewed the internal audit reports, financial statements, and the external audit 
report. The Committee did not find any material deviation, discrepancy, or any adverse 
finding/observation in the area of reporting. On behalf of the Committee, the following report has 
been furnished by the committee Chairman:

1981 mv‡j MvRxcyi †Rjvi Kvwjqv‰Ki _vbvi P›`ªvq †Kv¤úvwbwU ¯’vwcZ nq| 1984 mv‡ji RyjvB gv‡m Gi 
evwbwR¨K Drcv`b ïiæ nq| dvg©v GBW&m wjt ïay gvÎ wbDUªvj Møvm G¨v¤úyj (Neutral Glass Ampoule) 
Drcv`b K‡i †`kxq I eûRvwZK Jla †Kv¤úvwb¸‡jv‡Z mieivn K‡i h‡_ó mybvg AR©‡b m¶g n‡q‡Q| 
cªvwZôvwbK I Avw_©K e¨e¯’vcbvi †¶‡Î we`¨gvb `„óZv Ges me©¯Í‡i `vqe×Zv wbwðZ nIqvUvB dvg©v GBW&m 
wjt Gi mvd‡j¨i Ab¨Zg KviY| 

cªwZôv‡bi wnmve wbKv‡ki ¯^”QZv weav‡bi Rb¨ wnmve msμvšÍ hveZxq bw_cÎ I †iwRóvi h_vh_fv‡e 
msi¶Y Kiv n‡”Q| Z¤§‡a¨ K¨vk eB, e¨vsK eB, mvavib LwZqvb Ges mnKvix LwZqvb Ab¨Zg| wbix¶v 
eQ‡i (2021-2022) cªwZôv‡bi †gvU e¨vsK w¯’wZi cwigvb 2,47,41,286/- UvKv| dvg©v GBW&m wjt 
2021-2022 A_© eQ‡ii mKj wej fvDPvi¸‡jv myôfv‡e cix¶v Kiv nq hvi g‡a¨ Avg`vbxK„Z KuvPv gvj 
(Raw Materials), †givgZ I i¶Yv‡e¶Y, cwienb e¨q, †eZb fvZv, Avc¨vqb fvZv, hvZvqvZ fvZv, 
gy`ªvqY, g‡bvnwi, BZ¨vw` Ab¨Zg| †Kv_vI †Kvb ÎæwU wbix¶v KwgwUi Kv‡Q cªwZqgvb nqwb|

dvg©v GBW&m wjt-Gi KviLvbvq wewfbœ mvB‡Ri G¨v¤ú~j ˆZix Kivi Rb¨ 6wU AZ¨vaywbK †gwk‡b 3 wkd‡U 
24 N›Uvq M‡o cªvq 5.00 j¶ wcm G¨v¤ú~j ˆZix n‡”Q| †Kv¤úvwb‡Z †gvU ¯’vqx Kg©KZ©v 22 Rb, ¯’vqx 
Kg©Pvix 10 Rb, ¯’vqx kªwgK 45 Rb Ges A¯’vqx kªwgK 21 Rbmn me©‡gvU 98 Rb Kg©iZ Av‡Qb| 
gvwjK-kªwgK m¤úK© myi¶vi †¶‡Î cªwZôvbwU GKwU Abb¨ D`vniY| †Kv¤úvwbi Kg©cwi‡ek fvj I 
m‡šÍvlRbK| 
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‡Kv¤úvwbi Drcvw`Z c‡Y¨i ̧ bMZ gvb AvšÍR©vwZK gvb m¤úbœ nIqvq mv¤úªwZK eQi¸‡jv‡Z avivevwnKfv‡e 
DbœwZ K‡i Avm‡Q| Av‡jvP¨ wbix¶v eQ‡i (2021-2022) Drcv`b I weμq Ab¨vb¨ eQ‡ii Zyjbvq e„w× 
†c‡q‡Q| wewfbœ Lv‡Z we‡kl K‡i M¨vm, we`¨yr, †eZb fvZv, Drmvn fvZv, Avg`vwbK„Z KuvPvgvj, BZ¨vw` 
Lv‡Z Li‡Pi cwigvb MZ eQ‡ii Zyjbvq †ekx n‡q‡Q| Z‡e, MZ A_©eQ‡ii Zyjbvq Ki cieZ©x bxU gybvdvi 
cwigvY cªvq 30.83% nªvm †c‡q `vwi‡q‡Q 3,47,64,835/- UvKv, hv g~jZ wKQy GKvDw›Us wcªwÝcvj‡K 
Abymib Ki‡Z wM‡q n‡q‡Q Ges Gi wmsnfvM cªfve †Kv¤úvwbi Kg©PvixMY‡`i Mª¨vPyBwU Li‡Pi weav‡b NvUwZ 
†_‡K G‡m‡Q| 8wU cªwZôv‡bi wbKU †gvU 14,17,218/- UvKv †`bv Av‡Q| c¶všÍ‡i 28wU cªwZôv‡bi wbKU 
weμq eve` †gvU 12,35,12,529/- UvKv cvIbv Av‡Q, hvi 1% †Ljvwc nIqvi weavb, A_©vr 12,35,125/- 
UvKv, Av‡jvP¨ eQ‡ii Li‡P cªwZdwjZ n‡q‡Q| GQvovI, c~‡e©i 18,58,345/- UvKvi GKwU g~m‡Ki gvgjvq 
`xN©mgq hveZ †Kv‡bv BwZevPK j¶Y bv cvIqvq Zv m¤ú` †_‡K mwi‡q Av‡jvP¨ eQ‡i Li‡Pi LvZvq †bqv 
n‡q‡Q| g~jZ GmKj Kvi‡Y bxU gybvdv nªvm †c‡q‡Q| Ab¨w`‡K Ab¨vb¨ cvIbvi LvZvq me©‡gvU 
2,93,06,316/- UvKvi g‡a¨ G‡·jwmqi Mªæ‡ci 3wU A½cªwZôvb, A_©vr wi‡j‡UW cvwU© Uªvb‡RKkb eve` 
13,33,905/- UvKv cvIbv Av‡Q Ges evwK 2,79,72,411/- UvKv †hme cªwZôvb †_‡K cvIbv Av‡Q Zviv 
cªvB‡fU wjwg‡UW †Kv¤úvwb, G‡·jwmqi Mªæ‡ci Ask bq, Ges cwiPvjbv cl©‡`i †Kv‡bv m`m¨ ØvivI 
cwiPvwjZ nq bv; ZvB Zv‡`i cªvB‡fwm msi¶b I m¤§vb Kivi ¯^v‡_© GB mswkøó we¯ÍvwiZ wee„wZ me©mg‡¶ 
cªKvk Kiv nqwb| Z‡e mKj cvIbv ax‡i ax‡i Av`vq Kiv n‡”Q Ges GLb ch©šÍ GwU †Kv¤úvwbi Rb¨ †Kvb 
SyuwK ˆZwi K‡iwb| mewKQy we‡ePbv K‡i cªK„Zc‡¶ †Kv¤úvwbi mvwe©K cwiw¯’wZ m‡šÍvlRbK|

dvg©v GBW&m wjt Gi eZ©gvb cwiPvjbv cl©` I KZ©…c‡¶i mdj †bZ„‡Z¡i Kvi‡Y †Kv¤úvwb DË‡ivËi mg„w× 
jvf Ki‡Q| ïay gvÎ cªvwZôvwbK gybvdv AR©‡bi †¶‡ÎB bq, KviLvbvi Kg©cwi‡ek myi¶v, Drcv`b, eÈb 
I evRviRvZKi‡bi †¶‡Î ¸bMZ cwieZ©b G‡m‡Q g‡g© cªwZqgvb| we`¨gvb cwiw¯’wZ‡Z †Kv¤úvwbwU GKwU 
†ivjg‡Wj wn‡m‡e we‡ewPZ| cwi‡k‡l, wbix¶v KwgwU cªwZôv‡bi cwiPvjbv cl©`, e¨e¯’vcbv KZ©…c¶ Ges 
mKj ch©v‡qi Kg©KZ©v I Kg©Pvix‡`i mwμq mn‡hvwMZvi Rb¨ AvšÍwiK ab¨ev` I K…ZÁZv Rvbv‡”Q|

_____________________
Md. Mominul Hoque Dhali
Chairman, Audit Committee
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THE NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (NRC) 
REPORT FOR THE FY 2021-2022

In accordance with the best practice of Corporate Governance, the Board of Directors established 
aNomination and Remuneration Committee in compliance with the conditions imposed by the 
Commission notification no. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated 03 June, 2018 issued 
under section 2CC of the Securities and Exchange Ordinance, 1969.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) examines specific topics chosen by the 
Board of Directors and reports on them to the Board of Directors. Decision-making remains the 
collective responsibility of the Board of Directors and the committee may only make suggestions to 
the Board of Directors.

Composition of the NRC for the FY 2021-22:
According to Corporate Governance Code 2018, the Committee shall be appointed and nominated 
by the Board consisting of at least three members including an independent director. All members 
of the Committee shall be non-executive directors and any removal and appointment of any 
member in a committee is the subject to prior approval and full authority of the Board. A Chairman 
of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall be selected from among its members and 
shall be an Independent Director. The company secretary shall act as the secretary of the 
committee. 

The composition of the NRC was:

Sl. Name NRC Position

1 Mr. Md. Mominul Hoque Dhali (Independent Director) Chairman 

2 Mrs. Shahinoor Baby (Director) Member

3 Mrs. Shahinoor Begum (Director) Member

4 Mr. K. H. Reza, FCS (Company Secretary) Secretary

Meeting(s) of the NRC for the FY 2021-22:
According to Corporate Governance Code 2018, there shall be at least one meeting in a financial 
year. The quorum of the meeting of the NRC shall be constituted in presence of either two 
members or two third of the members of the Committee, whichever is higher, where presence of an 
independent director is must. 

The number of meetings held and attended by the members was:

Sl. NRC Members Meetings Held Attended

1 Mr. Md. Mominul Hoque Dhali – Chairman  3

2 Mrs. Shahinoor Baby – Member  
3

 3

3 Mrs. Shahinoor Begum – Member  3

4 Mr. K. H. Reza, FCS – Secretary  3

ANNEXURE-VII
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Activities of the NRC for the FY 2021-22:
  Reviewed the NRC Policy, Code of Conduct, and criteria for evaluation of performance of the 

Board
  Recommended nomination of the new CFO & HIAC of the Company
  Reviewed and recommended revised remuneration and honorarium for the Directors of the 

Board.
  Recommended re-appointment of Directors to the Board
  Reviewed HR policies and updates such as format of Annual Confidential Report (ACR), 

annual salary increment, and incentives based on performance for the year.

_____________________
Md. Mominul Hoque Dhali
Chairman, NRC

AN
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NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (NRC) 
POLICY OF PHARMA AIDS LIMITED

CONSTITUTION OF THE NRC:
The following constituition is applicable for governing the NRC of Pharma Aids Limited:
(a)  The Committee shall comprise of at least three members including an independent director;
(b) All members of the Committee shall be non-executive directors;
(c) Members of the Committee shall be nominated and appointed by the Board;
(d) The Board shall have authority to remove and appoint any member of the Committee;
(e) If the decision of removal or appointment of a member is not unanimous among the Board 

members, it shall be decided based on majority votes by the Board members, where each 
share held by a member shall count as one vote.

(f) In case of death, resignation, disqualification, or removal of any member of the Committee or 
in any other cases of vacancies, the board shall fill the vacancy within 180 (one hundred 
eighty) days of occurring such vacancy in the Committee;

(g) The Chairperson of the Committee may appoint or co-opt any external expert and/or 
member(s) of staff to the Committee as advisor who shall be non-voting member, if the 
Chairperson feels that advice or suggestion from such external expert and/or member(s) of 
staff shall be required or valuable for the Committee;

(h) The Company Secretary shall act as the secretary of the Committee;
(i) The quorum of the NRC meeting shall not constitute without attendance of at least an 

independent director;
(j) No member of the NRC shall receive, either directly or indirectly, any remuneration for any 

advisory or consultancy role, other than Director’s fees or honorarium from the Company.
(k) Original sponsors/directors of the Company, who are still part of the Board and directing the 

Company since its establishment in 1981 or its listing in the stock exchange in 1987-88, shall 
have the prerogative of nomination and remuneration regardless of the criteria laid down in 
this NRC policy.

TERMS OF REFERENCE (ToR) AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE NRC:

The NRC of Pharma Aids Limited shall be required to:
 Formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes, and independence of 

a director and recommend a policy to the Board, relating to the remuneration of the directors, 
and top-level executives;

 Devise a policy on Board’s diversity taking into consideration age, gender, experience, 
ethnicity, educational background, and nationality;

 Identify persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in top-level 
executive position in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend their 
appointment / removal to the Board;

 Formulate the criteria for evaluation of performance of independent directors and the Board;
 Identify the Company’s needs for employees at different levels and determine their selection, 

transfer or replacement, and promotion criteria; 
 DeveIop, recommend, and review annually the Company’s human resources and training 

policies;
 Oversee that the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to 

attract, retain, and motivate suitable directors to run the Company successfully;
 Oversee that the relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate 

performance benchmarks; and
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 Oversee that the remuneration to directors and top-level executives involves a balance 
between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance objectives 
appropriate to the working of the Company and its goals.

CRITERIA FOR BOARD NOMINATIONS:
The NRC of the Board is responsible for identifying persons for initial nomination as directors and 
evaluating incumbent directors for their continued service. The following are the qualifications, 
positive attributes, and independence criteria laid down by the NRC of Pharma Aids Limited:

Qualifications
 Personal Traits:

 Has highest personal and professional ethics, integrity, and values
 Shares the values and beliefs of the Company
 Has inquisitive and objective perspective, practical wisdom, and mature judgment
 Demonstrates intelligence, maturity, wisdom, and independent judgment
 Has self-confidence to contribute to board deliberations, has a stature that other board 

members will respect his or her views.

 Experience and Background:
 Well accomplished in his / her respective field
 Demonstrated success at policy-setting and strategy  development  levels  in  a  large 

organization (such as corporation, government, academic institution, or profession)
 Typically first level leadership position (i.e., Chair, MD & CEO, or equivalent) or second 

level (i.e. COO, CFO, or other CXO’s) unless the Board is seeking a particular skill set 
(e.g., technology, human resources management, or financial expert)

 Leadership role at the time a potential director’s initial candidacy is valuated must either 
be current or very fresh and recent, and incumbent directors should continue to 
demonstrate a sophisticated understanding and current knowledge of complex business 
issues

 A mastery of a broad knowledge area (e.g., engineering, finance, marketing, corporate 
affairs, technology, law, human resources management, executive leadership) that 
complements the skills of current board members and proposed board role

 Absence of adverse events (e.g., bankruptcy affiliations, disqualifications under Companies 
Act 1994 or other applicable laws etc.) that either disqualify or require adverse disclosures.

 Fit and proper:
 The  intangibles of  demeanor,  attitude  and  interpersonal  skills  that  indicate  the 

candidate  will  be  an  effective  member  of  the  board  of  directors  “team”  in  a  major 
company setting.

 Should act on fully informed basis, in good faith, with due diligence and care and in the 
best interest of the Company and its stakeholders

 Willingness to devote sufficient time to carry out the duties and responsibilities effectively, 
including attendance at meetings

 Willingness to undertake appropriate induction and regularly update and refresh his/ her 
skills, knowledge, and familiarity with the Company

 Commitment to representing the long-term interests of the shareholders and balancing 
the interests of stakeholders

 Willingness to challenge management in a constructive manner while working effectively 
as a part of a team in an environment of collegiality and trust

 Adhere to the Code of Conduct of the Company
 Protecting the legitimate interests of the Company, its shareholders and employees and 

maintain confidentiality.
 Meets the age criteria and applicable tenor restrictions placed by the Board.
 Absence of unfair obstruction in the functioning of the Board/Committees.
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Positive Attributes
The positive attributes for a director would encompass:
• Ethical Integrity & transparency
• Has/acquires sufficient knowledge in the Company’s business and operations
• Demonstrate sound judgment gained through experience & expertise in management/ 

technical/ financial/ governance or regulatory matters
• Foresight ability to see and prepare for future, anticipate needs, opportunities and threats
• Managerial abilities required to lead and guide the management such as effective 

communication skills, cultural sensitivity flexibility team player, strategic thinking, balancing 
risk with opportunity, ability to juggle several variables, and make complicated decisions etc.

Independence Standards
A Director is independent if the Board affirmatively determines that he/she meets the 
Independence criteria provided under the applicable laws. In addition to applying these guidelines, 
the Board will consider all relevant facts and circumstances in its determination relative to a 
director’s independence.

Two core objectives in selecting board members and continued board service are that the skills, 
experiences, and perspectives of the Board as a whole should be broad and diverse, and the 
collective talent should blend together to be as effective as possible.

Independence of Directors (only in the case of Independent Directors):
Any relationship between the Company and Directors other than in the normal course will affect the 
Independence of Directors in many ways. The Committee shall assure that the candidate proposed 
for the position of Independent Director meets the minimum criteria for Independence set out in the 
Corporate Governance Code of BSEC.

CRITERIA FOR BOARD REMUNERATION:
The remuneration policy will be annually reviewed by the Nominations and Remuneration 
Committee and the Board of Directors within the framework of their powers to maintain the 
alignment of the Company’s remuneration policy with the best practices and trends in the market.

Therefore, the Directors’ remuneration / honorarium for exercising their supervision and 
decision-making functions are based on the following main principles:
 The remuneration / honorarium must be sufficient and conform to the directors’ dedication, 

qualification, and responsibilities but it must not compromise their independent criteria.
 The remuneration / honorarium must be sufficient to attract and retain directors with the talent 

and profile desired by the Company
 The Directors may be paid sitting fees for attending the Board meetings

The MD & CEO’s remuneration for exercising his/her functions is based on the following main 
principles:
 Making sure that the compensation package can attract, retain and motivate the CEO and be 

competitive with respect to the similar trend business standards, so that the Company can 
meet its strategic objectives within the increasingly competitive environment in which it 
operates

 The MD & CEO may be paid sitting fees for attending the Board meetings
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The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall recommend to the Board, remuneration by 
way of salary, perquisites, and allowances to the Managing Director, the executive directors, and 
other senior management employee.

The remuneration to be paid to the Managing Director, the executive directors, and other senior 
management   employee shall be determined keeping in view the market practice, the relative 
performance of the Company to the industry performance and individual performance and shall be 
subject to approval of appropriate authorities, as and when required.

Independent Directors may be paid such sitting fees for attending the meeting of the Board and its 
committees, as approved by the Board time to time.

CRITERIA FOR BOARD EVALUATION:
The NRC is responsible for ensuring the effectiveness of the Board. The Board shall carry out an 
evaluation once a year of its work, functions, performance, as well as monitoring of internal control 
over financial reporting for the preparation of external financial statements and the safeguarding of 
assets. Each Director is required to complete a confidential pre-set questionnaire. The evaluation 
includes a review of the administration of the Board and its committees covering their operations, 
agenda, reports, and information produced for consideration, and relationship with Management.

On behalf of the Board,                          On behalf of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee,

Faizul Hassan                                                              Md. Mominul Hoque Dhali
Managing Director                                                                 Chairman, NRC
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DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION POLICY
OF PHARMA AIDS LIMITED

The Dividend Distribution Policy (“the policy”) of Pharma Aids Ltd. (“the Company”) establishes the 
principles to determine amounts that can be distributed to shareholders as dividend as well as 
balance between payout and retained earnings in order to address future needs of the Company. 
The policy shall come into force for accounting periods beginning from 1st July, 2021.

Dividend would continue to be declared on per share basis on the Ordinary Shares of the Company 
having face value Tk.10/- (Taka Ten) each. Therefore, dividend declared will be distributed 
amongst all shareholders, based on their shareholding on the record date. 

Dividends will generally be recommended by the Board once a year, after the announcement of the 
full year results and before the Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the shareholders, as may be 
permitted by the Companies Act. The Board may also declare interim dividends as may be 
permitted by the Companies Act. 

The Company has had a consistent dividend payout history that balances the objective of 
appropriately rewarding shareholders through dividends and to support the future growth. 
Information on dividends paid in the last 7 years is provided in the Annual Report every year. 

Subject to the provisions of the applicable law, the Company’s dividend payout will be determined 
based on available financial resources, investment requirements, profit growth, and taking into 
account optimal shareholder return. Before declaration of dividend, the Company may transfer a 
portion of its profits to Retained Earnings of the Company as may be considered appropriate by the 
Board at its discretion. In the event of inadequacy or absence of profits in any financial year, the 
Company may declare dividend out of free reserves subject to the compliance with the Act and 
Rules.

While determining the nature of the dividend payout, including amending the suggested payout 
range as above, the Board would take into account the following factors:  

Internal Factors:
I. Profitable growth of the Company and specifically, profits earned during the financial year as 

compared with: 
 a. Previous years and 
 b. Internal budgets; 
II. Cash flow position of the Company;
III. Accumulated reserves;
IV. Earnings stability;
V. Future cash requirements for balancing, modernization, rehabilitation, or expansion (BMRE);
VI. Potential mergers and acquisitions for expansion / stabilization / diversification / backward 

and/or forward linkages;
VII. Current and future debt leverage, and under exceptional circumstances the amount of 

contingent liabilities;
VIII. Deployment of funds in short term marketable investments;
IX. Long term investments;
X. Capital expenditure(s); 
XI. The ratio of debt to equity (at net debt and gross debt level); and
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XII. Any other factor as deemed appropriate by the Board.  
External Factors:
I. Business cycles;
II. Economic environment;
III. Cost of external financing; 
IV. Applicable taxes including tax on dividend; 
V. Industry outlook for the future years; 
VI. Actions and policies taken by the competition; 
VII. Inflation rate (including cost of raw materials); 
VIII. Changes in the Government policies, industry specific rulings & regulatory provisions; and
IX. Other factors beyond the control of the Management like natural calamities, fire, etc. effecting 

operations of the Company, may impact the decision with regard to dividend declaration.

Apart from the above, the Board also considers past dividend history and sense of shareholders’ 
expectations while determining the rate of dividend. The Board may additionally recommend 
special dividend in special circumstances. 

The Board may consider not declaring dividend or may recommend a lower payout for a given 
financial year, after analyzing the prospective opportunities and threats or in the event of 
challenging circumstances, such as, regulatory and financial environment. In such event, the Board 
will provide rationale in the Annual Report. 

The Retained Earnings of the Company may be used in any of the following ways: 
I. Capital expenditure for working capital; 
II. Investment in BMRE projects; 
III. Investment in new business(es) and/or additional investment in existing business(es);
IV. Declaration of dividend; 
V. Capitalization of shares; 
VI. General corporate purposes, including contingencies; 
VII. Correcting the capital structure; and 
VIII. Any other permitted usage as per the Companies Act / BSEC laws & regulations. 

This policy may be reviewed periodically by the Board. Any changes or revisions to the policy will 
be communicated to the shareholders in a timely manner. 

The policy will be disclosed in the Company’s Annual Report and will also be available on the 
Company’s website: http://www.pharmaaids.com

For the Board of PHARMA AIDS LIMITED,

_________________
Faizul Hassan
Managing Director
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Shareholders of Pharma Aids Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Pharma Aids Limited (the “Company”), which comprise 
the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2022 and the statement of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flow for the year then 
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. 

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter described in the “Basis for Qualified 
Opinion” section of our report, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view, in all 
material respects, of the financial position of the Company as of 30 June 2022, and its financial 
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial 
Reporting Standards (IFRSs).

Basis for Qualified Opinion 

1. The Company has debit balance with related party of Tk. 27,972,411 shown as other receivable 
in note no. 4.00 in these financial statement, Which should be disclosed as related party transac-
tion disclosure in note no. 36.00. But, no such disclosure has been made in this financial state-
ments. Moreover, no interest is charged/accrued during the year on related party debit balance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsi-
bilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with 
the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants 
(IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial 
statements in Bangladesh, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with 
the IESBA Code and the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB) Bye Laws. We 
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our opinion.
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Emphasis of Matter
We draw users’ attention to Note # 08.04 to the financial statements that discloses shareholding 
position of sponsors and directors at 24.22% of paid up capital as on June 30, 2022 which falls short 
to the minimum require shareholding of 30% of paid up capital as per BSEC Notification No. BSEC/C-
MRRCD/2009-193/217/Admin/90 dated 21st May 2019. Our opinion is not modified in this matter.

Key Audit Matters 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in 
our audit of the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022. These matters were addressed 
in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, 
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities of the audit of the finan-
cial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit 
included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risk of material 
misstatements of the financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the proce-
dures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompa-
nying financial statements. 
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Description of key audit matters Our Response to the key audit matters 

Revenue Recognition 
At the year ended, the company’s reported total 
revenue of Tk. 323,048,872 
Revenue is measured net of trade discount and 
VAT. Time of revenue recognition is matter. 
Considering the other inherent risk of the existence 
and the accuracy on revenue recognition, the 
revenue has been selected as key audit matter. 

We have tested the design and operating effectiveness of 
key controls focusing on the following: 

 Policy of revenue recognition  
 Issuance of VAT Challan 
 Segregation of duties in voice creation and 

modification and 
 Timing of revenue recognition.  

 
Our substantive procedures in relation to the revenue 
recognition comprises the following:  

 Obtaining supporting documentation for sales 
transactions recorded either side of year end as 
well as credit notes issued after the year end date 
to determine whether revenue was recognized in 
the correct period; 

 Critically assessing manual journals posted to 
revenue to identify unusual or irregular items; and 

 Finally assessed the appropriateness and 
presentation of disclosures against relevant 
accounting Standards. 

See note 18 in the financial statements 
Valuation of inventory 
The balance of inventory of the company at the 
year-end was TK.63,674,210 held in the 
company’s warehouse. 
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net 
realizable value. As a result, the Management 
apply judgment in determining the appropriate 
values for  slow-moving or obsolete items 

We challenged the appropriateness of management’s 
assumptions applied in calculating the value of the 
inventory and related provisions by: 
 Evaluating the design and implementation of key 

inventory controls operating across the company 
in respect of inventory management; 

 To attend the physical inventory counts and 
reconcile the count result to the inventory listing 
to test the completeness of data; 

 To review the inventory costing procedures and 
methodology. 

 Comparing the net realizable value, obtained 
through a detailed review of sales subsequently 
to the year-end, to the cost price of a sampleof 
inventories and comparison to the associated 
provision to assess whether inventory provision 
are complete;  

See the note 3.00 in the financial statements  
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Other Matters
Financial statements of the company for the year ended June 30, 2021 have been audited by Malek 
Siddiqui Wali (Chartered Accountants) and signing date was November 09, 2021.who have given a 
qualified opinion for that year.

Other Information included in the Company’s June 30, 2022 Annual Report
Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all of the 
information in the Annual Report other than the financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon. 
The Annual Report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.   
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express 
any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements of the Company, our responsibility is to read 
the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether 
the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained 
in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed 
on the other information obtained prior to the date of the auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a 
material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with 
governance.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial 
Statements and Internal Controls 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements of the 
Company in accordance with IFRSs as explained in note # 1, and for such internal control as 
Management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
In preparing the financial statements of the Company, management is responsible for assessing the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to 
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. Those 
charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that 
an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on 
the basis of these financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 

fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override 
of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management. 
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• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to 
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on Company’s ability to continue as a going 
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our 
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up 
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company 
to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or 
business activities within the Company to express an opinion on the financial statements. We are 
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit. We remain solely 
responsible for our audit opinion. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit. 
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and 
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, 
related safeguards. 
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters 
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are 
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or 
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we 
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse 
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of 
such communication.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
In accordance with the Companies Act, 1994, the Securities and Exchange Rules 2022, we also report 
that: 
a) we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 

belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit and made due verification thereof;  
b) in our opinion, proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by the Company so 

far as it appeared from our examination of those books; 
c) the statement of financial position and statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive 

income together with the annexed notes dealt with by the report are in agreement with the books 
of account and returns; and

d) the expenditures incurred were for the purpose of the Company’s business for the year;

Dated, Dhaka
November 09, 2022 

---------------------------------
Md. Shafiqul Islam FCA

Partner
Enrolment # 595

Shafiq Basak & Co.
Chartered Accountants

DVC: 2211090595AS331922
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Md. Shafiqul Islam FCA

Partner
Enrolment # 595

Shafiq Basak & Co.
Chartered Accountants

DVC: 2211090595AS331922



4646

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

---------------------------------
Md. Shafiqul Islam FCA

Partner
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Shafiq Basak & Co.
Chartered Accountants

DVC: 2211090595AS331922
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PHARMA AIDS LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2022

1.00  Significant Accounting Policies and Other Material Information:

1.01  Legal Form of the Company:
 The Company was incorporated on January 6, 1981, under the Companies Act 1913/1994 and 

it was converted into a Public Limited Company on March 10, 1988, and offered its share to the 
public with the approval of the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (the then 
Controller of Capital Issues). The Shares of the Company are listed in the Dhaka Stock 
Exchange Ltd.

1.02  Address of Registered Office and Principal Place of Business:
 The Registered Office of the Company is situated at 345 Segun Bagicha, Dhaka-1000 and the 

Factory located at Chandra, Kaliakoir, Gazipur.

1.03  Nature of Business Activities:
 The Company is a Manufacturer of Neutral Glass Ampoules, USP Type-I. These Ampoules are 

used by the pharmaceutical companies for filling liquid injections. 

1.04  Basis of Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements:
 The Financial Statements have been prepared on "Historical Cost" convention in a going 

concern concept and on accrual basis in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principle and practice in Bangladesh in compliance with the Companies Act 1913/1994, the 
Securities and Exchange Rules 1987, Listing Regulations of Dhaka Stock Exchange Ltd. (DSE), 
International Accounting Standards (IAS) and International Financial Reporting Standards 
(IFRS), adopted by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB).

1.05 Principle Accounting Policies:
 Specific accounting policies were selected and applied by the Company's management for 

significant transactions and events that have a material effect within the framework of IAS 1 
''Presentation of Financial Statements'' in preparation and presentation of financial statements. 
The previous years’ figures were not presented according to the same accounting principles. 
The related changes in principles are disclosed in Note 1.12. Accounting and valuation methods 
are disclosed for reasons of clarity. The Company classified the expenses using the function of 
expenses method as per IAS 1.

1.06 Reporting Period:
 The financial statements cover one financial year from July 01, 2021 to June 30, 2022.

1.07 Authorization for issue:
 The financial statements have been authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on November 

09, 2022.

1.08 Application of International Accounting Standards (IAS):
 The following IASs are applicable for the financial statements for the year under review:
 IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements
 IAS 2 Inventories
 IAS 7 Cash Flow Statements
 IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors
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 IAS 10 Events after the Balance Sheet Date
 IAS 12 Income Taxes
 IAS 16 Properties, Plant and Equipment
 IAS 17 Leases
 IAS 19 Employee Benefits
 IAS 23 Borrowing Costs
 IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures
 IAS 32 Presentations of Financial Instruments
 IAS 33 Earnings per Share
 IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
 IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
 IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosure
 IFRS 8 Operating Segments
 IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
 IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

1.09 Properties, Plant and Equipment:
All properties, plant and equipment are initially accounted for at cost and depreciated over their 
expected useful life in accordance with IAS 16. The cost of acquisition of an asset comprises its 
purchase price and any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its 
intended use inclusive of inward freight, duties and non-refundable taxes. In respect of major projects 
involving construction, related pre-operational expenses form part of the value of asset capitalized. 
Expenses capitalized also include applicable borrowing cost. On retirement or otherwise disposal of 
fixed assets, the cost and accumulated depreciation are eliminated and any gain or loss on such 
disposal is reflected in the income statement which is determined with reference to the net book value 
of the assets and the net sales proceeds. 

1.10 Depreciation:
 No depreciation is charged on land and on capital work-in-progress. Depreciation is charged on 

all other fixed assets by the reducing balance method. For depreciation of Office Equipment, 
Furniture & Fixture, Motor Vehicles and Sundry Assets, 90% is taken  in Administrative 
Expenses & 10% is taken in Cost of Goods Sold. The rates at which assets are depreciated per 
annum, depending on the nature and estimated useful life of assets, are given below:

 Particulars Rate
 Land 0%
 Building 5%
 Plant and Machinery 10%
 Air Compressor 10%
 Electrical Installation 10%
 Electrical Equipment 10%
 Office Equipment 15%
 Furniture and Fixture                                                            15%
 Gas Line Installation 10%
 Oxygen Generator                                                                20%
 Air Cooler                                                                            20%
 Mobile Scissor Lift                                  20%
 Motor Vehicles 20%
 Sundry Assets 15%
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1.11  Inventories:
 Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value in compliance to the 

requirements of Para 21 & 25 of IAS 2. The cost is determined on weighted average cost basis. 
Net realizable value is based on estimated selling price less any further costs anticipated to be 
incurred to make the sale. Any obsolete stock or abnormal losses are recognized as expenses.

1.12  Disclosures related to Accounting Policies and Changes in Accounting Estimates:
 As per IAS 8, the following related disclosures have to be mentioned that have a material effect 

on the Profit or Loss Statement of the Company for the financial year 2021-2022:

 a) Application of Deferred Tax Asset/Liability & Deferred Tax Income/Expense
 The Company always submitted its Income Tax return as per section 82BB (Universal 

Self-Assessment) under the ITO, 1984, and based on all the tax assessments of previous years, 
there was no material effect on the depreciation expenses of the Company. Hence, the 
Company did not find it applicable to disclose deferred tax related provisions in the financial 
statements. However, in order to comply with the accounting principle as per paragraph 58 and 
81(g) of IAS 12, the Company has incorporated deferred tax related disclosures in the 
Statements of Profit or Loss and Financial Position starting from this reporting financial year 
2021-2022 (Note:15.02). This resulted in reducing the Net Profit after Tax (NPAT) by BDT 
271,546 for the financial year 2021-2022 compared to previous year.

 b) Application of Provision for Bad Debt Expenses
 The Company never kept provision for bad debt expenses on its trade receivables for previous 

financial years. However, starting from this reporting year, the Company is applying 1% (one 
percent) of the trade receivables as provision for bad debt expenses in compliance with para 
5.5.15 of IFRS 9 (Note:13.00) considering the after effects of Covid-19 as well as the effects of 
ongoing geo-political conflict in Europe. This resulted in further reducing the Net Profit before 
Tax by BDT 1,235,125 for the financial year 2021-2022 compared to previous year.

 c) Changes in Accounting Estimates with respect to Provision for Gratuity
 The Company kept provision for gratuity at around 25% of the total estimate every year which 

was not adequate. As per IAS 37, the best estimate is to not keep any shortfall in provision for 
any expense that the Company is obligated to pay in future. Hence, the Company has kept 
100% of the total estimate as provision for gratuity for the reporting year (Note 13.00) as well as 
around 75% shortfall of previous financial years. This resulted in significantly reducing the Net 
Profit before Tax by BDT 17,000,803 for the financial year 2021-2022 compared to previous 
year.

1.13  Income Taxes:
 Income tax expenses are recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other 

Comprehensive Income and accounted for in accordance with the requirements of IAS 12.

 Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year or the minimum tax 
payable as per section 82C of the ITO, 1984. Any adjustment to tax payable in respect of 
previous years is also reflected in the Profit or Loss Statement The Company qualifies as a 
“Publicly Traded Company”; and as per the conditions of the Finance Act 2022, the applicable 
tax rate is 22.50% for the FY 2021-2022.

 Deferred Tax (Assets)/Liabilities:
 Deferred tax is recognized as an income/expense and included in the net profit or loss for the 

period.    Accordingly, deferred tax asset/liability is also recognized for taxable difference (details 
given in Note 15.02).
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1.14  Employees Benefits:
 a) Workers’ Profit Participation Fund and Welfare Fund:
 The Company makes a regular allocation of 5% on Net Profit before Tax to this fund and 

payment is made to the Workers’ Profit Participation Fund as per provisions of the Companies 
Profit under Labor Law 2013(Amendment), Chapter-15, and IAS 19.

 b) Gratuity: The Company pays basic salary to their permanent employees based on 45 days 
per year as Gratuity.

 c) Provident Fund: Provident Fund of the employees is recognized by Income Tax Authority.

 d) Other Benefits: The Company also provided benefits to its employees such as Annual 
Leave, 

 Festival Leave, Sick Leave, Earned Leave encashment, Incentive, Bonuses, and one meal for    
every shift, i:e. 3 (three) meals for 3 (three) shifts duties every working day.

1.15  Revenue Recognition:
 In compliance with the requirements of IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”, 

revenue is recognized when performance obligation relating to sold goods is satisfied by the 
Company. The revenue is recognized net off VAT and trade discount. Revenue from sales is 
exclusive of VAT.

1.16  Statement of Cash Flows:
 Cash flow statement is prepared in accordance with IAS 7 under direct method and as outlined 

in the Securities and Exchange Rule 1987.

1.17  Earnings Per Share (EPS):
 Earnings Per Share (EPS) is calculated in accordance with the International Accounting 

Standard IAS 33 "Earnings per Share". EPS has been calculated by dividing the earnings 
attributable to the number of shares (ordinary) held by the shareholders during the year.

1.18  Borrowing Cost:
 The Company capitalizes borrowing cost for new projects such as interest on term loan and 

other related fees/charges for the period till the commencement of commercial operation and 
charges the cost to Profit & Loss Account as financial expenses after commencement of the 
commercial operation (IAS 23).  

1.19  Net Profit After Tax:
 Net Profit After Tax (NPAT) for the year was materially affected by the following factors:
 a) Application of Deferred Tax Asset/Liability & Deferred Tax Income/Expense
 b) Application of Provision for Bad Debt Expenses
 c) Changes in Accounting Estimates with respect to Provision for Gratuity
 d) Write-off of an unsettled VAT Case (Note 38.01) that was shown as an asset in prior years.

1.20  Cash and Cash Equivalent:
 This comprises Cash in Hand and Cash at Bank which are available for use by the Company.

1.21  Segment Reporting:
There is a single business and geographic segment within which the Company operates. As such, no 
segment reporting is felt necessary (IFRS 8).
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1.22 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets:
 Provisions were made considering risk and uncertainties at best estimate of the probable 

expenditure that would require meeting the current obligation at the date of Statement of 
Financial Position. Contingent liabilities and assets are current or possible obligations or on 
liabilities or assets, arising from past events and existence of which depends upon the 
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events which are not within the 
control of the Company. In accordance with IAS 37, they are disclosed where applicable.

1.23  General:
 Previous year's figures have been regrouped/reclassified wherever considered necessary to 

conform to current year's presentation. Figures have been rounded off to the nearest taka as the 
currency represented in these financial statements.

       Regrouping/Reclassification details:
      
1) As per BSEC Directive No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2021-386/03 dated January 14, 2021, previous 

year’s “Dividend Payable” account under the Statement of Financial Position has been renamed 
as “Unclaimed/Undistributed Dividend” with effect from current year. The details and year-wise 
summary of this account has been disclosed in Note 14.00 & 14.01.

2) “Gas Consumption” account under Cost of Goods Sold in Note 19.00 was Tk.16,805,724 during 
the year 2020-2021. This amount included the fuel cost of Tk.336,205 and oxygen cost of 
Tk.8,490,897. For a more accurate representation, “Oxygen for Production” account has been 
separately created and the related fuel cost has been added to “Fuel for Production” for the year 
ended June 30, 2022 and 2021. 

3) “Audit Fees” account under Administrative & Selling Expenses in Note 20.00 was Tk.138,000 
during the year 2020-2021. This amount included only the statutory audit fee; while the 
“Compliance Fee” account of Tk.28,750 included the compliance audit fee only. However, for the 
year ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, both the statutory and compliance audit fees have been 
included in the “Audit Fees” and the Compliance Fee account has been removed.

4)  “Leave Pay & Gratuity” under “Liabilities for Expenses” account in the Statement of Financial 
Position has been shown separately as “Leave Pay” under the same account and as “Gratuity” 
under a new account named “Provision for Expenses” for the year ended on June 30, 2022 and 
June 30, 2021, in order to present the changes as per Note 1.12 more clearly. “Leave Pay” and 
“Gratuity” are also separately shown under "Cost of Goods Sold" (Note-19) and "Administrative 
expenses" (Note-20) for more clarity.

5)  “VAT Adjustment” of Tk.1,858,345 is removed from the Security Deposits under Current Assets 
and the whole amount is written-off as an administrative expense. Although the case is still 
unsettled as per Note 38.01, the case is being dragged aimlessly since 2010 and the chance of 
recovering the amount is negligible as per decision of the Board. This resulted in reduction of 
Net Profit before Tax by the same amount for the reporting year.
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345 Segun Bagicha, Dhaka-1000

I/We ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ of ----------------------------------

----------------------------------------------------------------- being a member of PHARMA AIDS LIMITED

do hereby appoint 
Mr./Mrs./Miss.-----------------------------------------------------------------------, as my/our Proxy to attend   
and vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 41st Annual General Meeting of the Company to  be 
held on Tuesday, the 27th December, 2022, at 11:30 AM at Virtual Platform.

As witness my/our hand this -----------------------------------------------------------------27th day of 
December, 2022.

Register BO/Folio No.. 

No. of Shares held ----------------------------------------------------- Date -----------------------------------------

___________________                                                                   ________________________
(Signature of the Proxy)          (Signature of the Shareholder)
Note:  1. The Proxy Form duly signed and stamped by Tk. 20.00 (Twenty) must be deposited at the 

Company’s Registered Office at 345 Segun Bagicha, Dhaka, at least 48 hours before the 
meeting.

            2.  Signature of the Shareholder/Proxy must be similar with the specimen signature 
recorded at the Company’s Share Register/Depository Register. 

PHARMA AIDS LIMITED
345 Segun Bagicha, Dhaka-1000

ATTENDANCE SLIP

I do hereby confirm my presence at the 41st Annual General Meeting of PHARMA AIDS 
LIMITED today the 27th  December, 2022, at 11:30 am at Virtual Platform, Dhaka-1000.

Name of the Shareholder/ Proxy --------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Register BO/Folio No. 

No. of Shares held ---------------------------------------------------- Date ----------------------------------------

___________________                                                                    _______________________
(Signature of the Proxy)           (Signature of the Shareholder)
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dvg©v GBW&m wjwg‡UW
345 †m¸bevwMPv, XvKv-1000|

40Zg evwl©K mvavib mfvi Kvh©weeiYxt

dvg©v GBW&m wjt -Gi 2020-2021Bs A_© eQ‡ii 40Zg evwl©K mvaviY mfv 30‡k wW‡m¤^i, 2021, ZvwiL ‡ivR e„n¯úwZevi mKvj 
11.30 NwUKvq wWwRUvj cøvUd‡g© http://pal.agm.watch wjs‡Ki gva¨‡g AbywôZ nq| D³ mfvq wb‡gœv³ cwiPvjKe„›`mn 
D‡jøL‡hvM¨msL¨K ‡kqvi‡nvìvi mshy³ wQ‡jb|  

1| Rbve Gg, G, gvmy`   -  ‡Pqvig¨vb
2| Rbve dv‡qRyj nvmvb  - e¨e ’̄vcbv cwiPvjK
3| wg‡mm kvnxb~i ‡eex - cwiPvjK
4| wg‡mm kvnxb~i ‡eMg - cwiPvjK
5| Rbve ‡gvt ‡gvwgb~j nK Xvjx - ¯̂Zš¿ cwiPvjK
6| Rbve ‡K, GBP, ‡iRv - K‡c©v‡iU ‡m‡μUvwi|

cweÎ ‡KviAvb ‡ZjvIqvZ I gnvb Kiæbvgq AvjøvnZvqvjvi `iev‡i cÖv_©bvi gva¨‡g mfvi KvR Avi¤¢ nq| ‡KviAvb ‡ZjvIqvZ I 
‡`vqv cwiPvjbv K‡ib K¡vix ‡gvt wRqvDi ingvb| 

‡Kv¤úvwbi ‡Pqvig¨vb, Rbve Gg, G, gvmy`, mfvq mfvcwZZ¡ K‡ib| ‡Pqvig¨vb g‡nv`‡qi AbygwZμ‡g ‡Kv¤úvwbi e¨e¯’vcbv cwiPvjK 
g‡nv`q 2020-2021Bs A_© eQ‡ii evwl©K cÖwZ‡e`b m¤§vwbZ ‡kqvi‡nvìvi‡`i wbKU ‡ck K‡ib| wZwb ‡KvwfW-19 gnvgvixi g‡a¨I 
mKj‡K kvixwiKfv‡e my¯’¨Zv `vb K‡i dvg©v GBW&m wjt-Gi 40Zg evwl©K mvaviY mfvi wWwRUvj cøvUd‡g© mshy³ nIqvi ‡ZŠwdK 
w`‡q‡Qb e‡j gnvb iveŸyj Avjvgxb-Gi `iev‡i ïKixqv cÖKvk K‡ib| K‡ivbv bvgK GK ÿz`ªvwZÿz`ª Rxevbyi K‡qK iKg †fwi‡q‡›Ui 
g‡a¨ me©‡kl †fwi‡q›U Iwgμb, hv cÖwZ 3w`‡b wØ¸Y AvKv‡i msμwgZ n‡”Q| gnvb AvjøvnZvqvjv GB KwVb cix¶v n‡Z Avgv‡`i 
mKj‡K Z_v mviv we‡k¦i mKj gvbyl‡K hv‡Z i¶v K‡ib, Dnvi Rb¨ mvnvh¨ Kvgbv K‡ib| K‡ivbv fvBiv‡mi Kvi‡Y Av‡jvP¨ eQ‡i 
Ab¨vb¨ ‡Kv¤úvwbi gZ dvg©v GBW&m wjt-Gi evwl©K mvaviY mfvI wWwRUvj cøvUd‡g© AbywôZ n‡”Q| ZvB wZwb B›Uvi‡bU wKsev Ab¨ ‡Kvb 
Kvi‡Y Abyôv‡bi weNœZv m…wó n‡j AbyMÖnc~e©K ‰ah¨©avi‡bi Aby‡iva Rvbvb|

wZwb wWwRUvj cøvUd‡g© AbywôZ evwl©K mvaviY mfvq mshy³ kÖ‡×q mfvcwZ g‡nv`q, m¤§vwbZ cwiPvjKMY, mKj m¤§vwbZ 
‡kqvi‡nvìviMY, BSEC, DSE I ICB ‡_‡K mshy³ cÖwZwbwae…›` Ges ‡Kv¤úvwbi mKj Kg©KZ©v I Kg©Pvixe…›`‡K Qvjvg, ï‡f”Qv Ges 
Bs‡iRx be e‡l©i AMÖxg Happy New Year 2022 Rvwb‡q mfvq ¯^vMZ e³e¨ cÖ`vb K‡ib|

mfvi g~j Av‡jvP¨m~Px‡Z hvIqvi c~‡e© e¨e¯’vcbv cwiPvjK g‡nv`q AZ¨všÍ fvivμvšÍ n«`‡q D‡jøL K‡ib †h, G‡·jwmqi MÖæ‡ci 
cÖwZôvZv Z_v AÎ †Kv¤úvwbi GKRb D‡`¨v³v cwiPvjK Ges mK‡ji kª‡×q giûg Rbve †gvt Aveyj Kvjvg Gi ¯¿x wg‡mm b~iæj Av³vi 
A‡iviv MZ 29-04-2021 ZvwiL 16B igRvb ‡ivR e„n¯úwZevi XvKvi GKwU nvmcvZv‡j B‡šÍKvj K‡ib| Bbœvwjjøv‡n ------i‡RDb| 
MZeQi dvg©v GBW&m wjt-Gi 39Zg evwl©K mvavib mfvq giûg Kvjvg mv‡n‡ei Rb¨ †kvK cÖ¯Íve DÌvcb Kiv n‡qwQj Ges Zvi iæ‡ni 
gvM‡div‡Zi Rb¨ †`vqv Kiv n‡qwQj| Kvjvg mv‡n‡ei B‡šÍKv‡ji gvÎ 5gvm 10w`‡bi e¨eav‡b Zvi ¯¿xI B‡šÍKvj K‡ib| Df‡qi Rb¨ 
wZwb gnvb iveŸyj Avjvgxb Gi `iev‡i gvM‡divZ Ges RvbœvZzj †di‡`Šm bmx‡ei Rb¨ cÖv_©bv K‡ib| wZwb Rvbvb giûgv b~iæj Av³vi 
Av‡iviv dvg©v GBW&m wjt-Gi cwiPvjK wn‡m‡e `xN© w`b `vwqZ¡ cvjb K‡i‡Qb| Gmgq Zvi wPšÍv-‡PZbv I w`K wb‡`©kbvg~jK Kg©Kv‡Û 
dvg©v GBW&m wjt-Gi A‡bK Kj¨vb mvab n‡q‡Q| Zuv‡`i GK gvÎ mšÍvb, e¨vwióvi b~iæj Kvjvg AvmIqv`-Gi Rb¨I wZwb gnvb 
AvjøvnZvqvjvi wbKU Zvi †bK I `xN© Rxeb `v‡bi Rb¨ †`vqv K‡ib I mK‡ji Kv‡QI †`vqv Kvgbv K‡ib| AZ:ci wZwb mfvi Kvh©μg 
ïiæ K‡ib| ïiæ‡ZB wZwb m¤§vwbZ †kqvi‡nvìvi‡`i AeMwZi Rb¨ wKQz mswÿß Z_¨ D‡jøL K‡ib| MZ A_©eQ‡ii †iKW© †WU ch©šÍ 
‡Kv¤úvwbi †kqvi‡nvìv‡ii msL¨v wQj 3,557 Rb| Av‡jvP¨ eQ‡ii †iKW© †WU 07-12-2021Bs ZvwiL ch©šÍ †Kv¤úvwbi †kqvi‡nvìvi 
762 Rb †e‡o `vwo‡q‡Q 4,319 Rb| evwl©K cÖwZ‡e`‡bi 10bs c„óvq †`qv we¯ÍvwiZ weeiY I MÖvd †_‡K m¤§vwbZ †kqvi‡nvìviMY 
wbðqB jÿ¨ K‡i‡Qb †h, K‡ivbvi cÖv`yf©ve _vKv m‡Z¡I †Kv¤úvwb cÖwZwôZ nIqvi ci †_‡K G hver Kv‡ji g‡a¨ Avjøvni A‡kl ing‡Z 
G eQiB †Kv¤úvwbi Drcv`b I weμq me‡P‡q †ekx n‡q‡Q| Drcv`b I weμq †ekx n‡jI BwcGm wKQzUv Kg n‡q‡Q| KviY Drcv`b 
LiP 1.77 kZvsk e„w× †c‡q‡Q| AvMvgx‡Z G Lv‡Z LiP A‡bK e„w× cvIqvi wel‡q wZwb AvksKv cÖKvk K‡ib| 

‡kqvi cÖwZ †bU G¨v‡mU f¨vjy e„w× cvIqvq e¨e¯’vcbv cwiPvjK g‡nv`q gnvb Avjøvni `iev‡i jvL-‡KvwU ïKwiqv Ávcb K‡ib| GLv‡b 
wZwb AviI GKwU welq D‡jøL K‡ib Zv n‡jv miKvwi ‡KvlvMv‡i †Kv¤úvwb cÖwZeQi GKwU D‡jøL‡hvM¨ cwigvb UvKv f¨vU Ges AvqKi 



Lv‡Z Rgv w`‡”Q| c‡ivÿ Ki ev` w`‡jI Av‡jvP¨ eQ‡i f¨vU Lv‡Z 4.34 †KvwU UvKv Ges AvqKi Lv‡Z 1.47 †KvwU UvKv, me©†gvU 
5.81 †KvwU UvKv dvg©v GBW&m wjt-Gi gZ †QvU GKwU ‡Kv¤úvwb miKvwi †KvlvMv‡i mivmwi Rgv w`‡q †`‡ki Dbœq‡b A‡bK eo fywgKv 
cvjb K‡i P‡j‡Q| GB avivevwnKZv a‡i ivLv AZ¨šÍ eo P¨v‡jÄ| cÖwZ‡hvMx 2wU †Kv¤úvwb B‡Zg‡a¨ eÜ n‡q wM‡q‡Q| Ab¨w`‡K AviI 
GKwU b~Zb †Kv¤úvwb cÖvq 1 eQi a‡i G¨v¤úyj evRviRvZ Kivi †Póv Pvwj‡qI GLb ch©šÍ mdj n‡Z cv‡iwb| GwU GgbB GKwU 
KviLvbv, hv B”Qv Ki‡jB †KD †gwkb μq K‡i Drcv`b ïiæ K‡i mdj n‡e bv| Drcv`b e„w× cvIqvq wZwb AvjøvnZvqvjvi `iev‡i 
ïKwiqv cÖKvk K‡i D‡jøL K‡ib, †Kv¤úvwb cÖwZôv Kivi ci †_‡K wbqwgZfv‡e fvj wWwf‡WÛ w`‡q Avm‡Q| MZ 3 eQimn G eQiI 
50% wWwf‡WÛ mycvwik Kiv n‡q‡Q| Z‡e A‡bK †ÿ‡Î †hgb KuvPvgv‡ji `vg, we`y¨r I M¨vm LiP, †eZb-fvZvw`, †evbvm, B‡Ýw›Uf, 
BZ¨vw` A‡bK e„w× cvIqv m‡Z¡I ‡Kv¤úvwb avivevwnKfv‡e Zvi mdjZv Ae¨vnZ ivL‡Z mÿg n‡q‡Q| 2012-2013Bs A_© eQ‡i †hLv‡b 
Drcv`b LiP n‡qwQj 76.22%, †mLv‡b MZ eQi wQj 60.36%| Aek¨ Av‡jvP¨ eQ‡i Dnv 1.77% †e‡o n‡q‡Q 62.13%| 
‡Kv¤úvwbi mdjZvi Rb¨ Kg©iZ mKj Kg©KZ©v, Kg©Pvix I kªwgKe„‡›`i cÖwZ wZwb e¨w³MZfv‡e K…ZÁZv cÖKvk K‡i Kvqgbev‡K¨ gnvb 
AvjøvnZvqvjvi `iev‡i †`vqv K‡ib Ges wWwRUvj cøvUd‡g© mshy³ mKj †kqvi‡nvìvi‡`i‡K wZwb Zv‡`i Rb¨ †`vqv Kivi Av‡e`b 
Rvbvb| wZwb D‡jøL K‡ib ‡h, ‡Kv¤úvwb‡Z Kg©iZ mKj‡K gvwmK cvwikÖwg‡Ki evwn‡iI ‡ek wKQz Aby‡cÖibv`vqK my‡hvM myweav ‡`qv 
n‡”Q| Z¤§‡a¨ Zv‡`i mšÍvb‡`i g‡a¨ hviv †jLv-covq fvj, Zv‡`i‡K wkÿve„wË cÖ`vb Kiv n‡”Q g~L¨| 

e¨e¯’vcbv cwiPvjK g‡nv`q m¤§vwbZ †kqvi‡nvìvie„‡›`i AeMwZi Rb¨ †Kv¤úvwbi 2wU mgm¨vi K_v D‡jøL K‡ib| cÖ_gZ ¯úÝi I 
cwiPvjK‡`i mgwôMZfv‡e Kgc‡ÿ 30% †kqvi _vKv Ges †Kv¤úvwbi Paid up Capital Kgc‡ÿ 30 †KvwU UvKv Kiv| G wel‡q 
h_vμ‡g 6B I 9B wW‡m¤^i Zvwi‡L BSEC ‡_‡K mgq †e‡a w`‡q wPwV ‡`qv n‡q‡Q| 30% †kqvi _vKvi welq MZ eQi evwl©K mvaviY 
mfvq m¤§vwbZ †kqvi‡nvìv‡`i Rvbv‡bv n‡qwQj| †hgb, 30% †kqvi bv _vK‡j ¯úÝi I cwiPvjKMY †Kvb †kqvi weμq wKsev n¯ÍvšÍi 
Ki‡Z cvi‡eb bv, Ges †Kv¤úvwb ivBU ev †evbvm †kqvi w`‡Z cvi‡e bv, Ges cyYtAvBwcI Gi Rb¨ Av‡e`b Ki‡Z cvi‡e bv, BZ¨vw`| 
wZwb D‡jøL K‡ib, †Kv¤úvwbi mKj †evW© m`m¨‡`i 2% Gi †ekx †kqvi Av‡Q, wKš‘ 2013Bs mvj †_‡K mgwóMZfv‡e 30% Gi Kg 
†kqvi i‡q‡Q| †Kv¤úvwbi Ab¨Zg GKRb cwiPvjK hvi †kqvi me‡P‡q †ekx wQj, wZwb Zuvi bv‡g 250wU †kqvi †i‡L evwK me †kqvi 
weμq Ki‡Z eva¨ n‡qwQ‡jb; Zuvi cwiPvjbvq Ab¨ 2wU †Kv¤úvwb‡K euvwP‡q ivLvi Rb¨, hv wQj Zuvi Rb¨ ˆbwZK `vwqZ¡| H gyû‡Z© dvg©v 
GBW&m wjt-Gi †kqvi weμq Kiv Qvov Zuvi Kv‡Q Ab¨ †Kvb Dcvq wQj bv| eZ©gv‡b 30% †kqvi c~Y© Ki‡Z cÖvq 6% †kqvi μq Ki‡Z 
n‡e, hvi eZ©gvb evRvi g~j¨ cÖvq 12 †KvwU UvKvi Dci| ‡Kv¤úvwbi †Kvb cwiPvjK wKsev D‡`¨v³v‡`i Kv‡Q GKKfv‡e wKsev mK‡j 
wg‡jI GZ cwigvb UvKvi wKq`vskI bv _vKvq 30% †kqvi‡nvwìs m¤¢e n‡”Q bv| G welq cwiPvjbv cl©` Zuv‡`i Ae¯’vb e¨vL¨v K‡i 
BwZg‡a¨B BSEC-‡K Rvwb‡q‡Qb| eZ©gv‡b G welqwUi mv‡_ hy³ n‡q‡Q Paid up Capital 30 †KvwU UvKv Kivi cÖm½| G`yÕ‡Uv wel‡q 
‡evW© GLbI †Kvb wm×v‡šÍ DcwbZ n‡Z mÿg nqwb| ZvB ‡evW© BSEC-Gi mv‡_ c~btivq Avjvc Av‡jvPbvi gva¨‡g mgm¨v `yÕ‡Uvi myô 
mgvav‡bi †Póv Kiv n‡e e‡j e¨e¯’vcbv cwiPvjK g‡nv`q D‡jøL K‡ib|  

AZ:ci wZwb Av‡jvP¨ eQi I cieZ©x A_© eQ‡ii Ae¯’v wb‡q m¤§vwbZ †kqvi‡nvìviM‡Yi AeMwZi Rb¨ e³e¨ †ck K‡ib| eZ©gvb 
A_©vr 2021-2022 A_© eQ‡ii RyjvB †_‡K b‡f¤^i ch©šÍ 5 gv‡m Drcv`b n‡q‡Q 6.22 †KvwU wcm G¨v¤úyj, hv MZ eQi wQj 5.13 
†KvwU wcm| GB 5 gv‡m weμq n‡q‡Q 14.16 †KvwU UvKv, hv MZ eQi wQj 11.49 †KvwU UvKv| A_©vr MZ eQ‡ii Zzjbvq Drcv`b 
21.25% †ekx n‡q‡Q Ges weμq †e‡o‡Q 23.24%, hv Aek¨B Avkvi Av‡jv †`Lv‡”Q| wZwb mKj‡K gnvb Avjøvni ̀ iev‡i †`vqv Kivi 
Aby‡iva Rvbvb, hv‡Z gnvb AvjøvnZvqvjv mviv c„w_ex †_‡K, we‡kl K‡i evsjv‡`k †_‡K K‡ivbv wbg©~j K‡i ¯^vfvweK cwiw¯’wZ ˆZix K‡i 
†`b| Zv bv n‡j AvMvgx‡Z c~‡e©i b¨vq DbœwZ Kiv mwZ¨B eo P¨v‡jÄ n‡e e‡j wZwb D‡jøL K‡ib| GKw`‡K †KvwfW-19 Gi gvivZ¥K 
cÖfve, Ab¨w`‡K Avg`vwb wbf©i G¨v¤úy‡ji KuvPvgvj mviv c„w_ex‡Z cÖPÛ Afve †`Lv w`‡q‡Q| †Kv_vI Pvwn`v †gvZv‡eK KuvPvgvj cvIqv 
hv‡”Q bv| d‡j mKj we‡μZviv Zv‡`i `vg evwo‡q w`‡q‡Q| c~‡e©i Zzjbvq A‡bK †ekx g~j¨ w`‡qI mgq gZ †WwjfvwiI cvIqv hv‡”Q 
bv| AwMÖg eywKs w`‡qI A‡bK mgq gvj cvIqv hv‡”Q bv| fwel¨‡Z G mgm¨v AviI cÖKU nIqvi m¤¢vebv i‡q‡Q| c~‡e© 2-3 gv‡mi ÷K 
ivL‡jI †Kvb mgm¨v n‡Zv bv| GLb 6-8 gv‡mi ÷K ivL‡jI gv‡S g‡a¨ mgm¨v n‡”Q| `xN© mg‡qi Rb¨ ÷K ivL‡Z GKw`‡K †hgb 
A‡bK †ekx IqvwK©s K¨vwcUvj cÖ‡qvRb, Ab¨w`‡K †Zgwb A‡bK eo Iq¨vinvDR `iKvi| ZvB Av‡jvP¨ eQ‡i ‡Kv¤úvwbi Iq¨vinvDR 
‰Zixi Rb¨ MZ eQ‡ii b¨vq AviI A‡bK UvKv LiP nIqvi m¤¢vebv i‡q‡Q e‡j wZwb D‡jøL K‡ib|

evwl©K cÖwZ‡e`‡bi 14 bs c„ôvq 18bs †bv‡U wbixÿK-Gi weiæc gšÍ‡e¨i cÖwZ e¨e¯’vcbv cwiPvjK g‡nv`q †kqvi‡nvìvi‡`i `„wó 
AvKl©Y K‡i D‡jøL K‡ib, ˆewk¦K gnvgvwi †KvwfW-19 Gi gvivZ¥K cÖfve m‡Z¡I †Kv¤úvwb ‡`bv`vi‡`i KvQ †_‡K 72,91,313/- UvKv 
AwZwi³ Av`vq Ki‡Z mÿg n‡q‡Q| dvg©v GBW&m wjt G‡·jwmqi MÖæ‡ci Ab¨vb¨ A½cÖwZôvbmg~‡ni b¨vq mKj ‡`bv`vi‡`i 
‡MvcYxqZvi cÖwZ kÖ×v iv‡L| Z‡e cwiPvjbv cl©` AZ¨všÍ AvZ¡wek¦vmx †h, mg¯Í cvIbv UvKv mg‡qi mv‡_ mv‡_ Av`vq n‡q hv‡e - 
Bb&kvAvjøvn&| 

jf¨vsk cÖ`vb m¤ú‡K© evwl©K cÖwZ‡e`‡bi 13bs c„ôvq 10bs ‡bv‡U D‡jøL Kiv n‡q‡Q e‡j wZwb D‡jøL K‡ib| hw`I MZ eQ‡ii Zzjbvq 
Av‡jvP¨ eQ‡i 22.15 jÿ UvKv Kg jvf n‡q‡Q, ZeyI cwiPvjbv cl©` MZ 3 eQ‡ii b¨vq G eQiI 50% bM` jf¨vsk †`qvi mycvwik 



K‡i‡Qb| wZwb Avkv K‡ib †h, m¤§vwbZ †kqvi‡nvìviMY AZ¨všÍ Lykxg‡bB †ev‡W©i G mycvwik Aby‡gv`b Ki‡eb| AZtci wZwb 
Av‡jv”¨m~Px Abyhvqx mfv cwiPvjbv K‡ib| 

Av‡jvP¨m~Px 01: 24-12-2020Bs Zvwi‡L AbywôZ 39Zg evwl©K mvavib mfvi Kvh©weeibx wbwðZKibt
e¨e¯’vcbv cwiPvjK g‡nv`q Dc‡iv³ Av‡jvP¨m~Px Aby‡gv`‡bi Rb¨ m¤§vwbZ †kqvi‡nvìvi‡`i 1:00 wgwbU mgq wba©viY K‡i Zv‡`i 
g~j¨evb †fvU cÖ`v‡bi Aby‡iva Rvbv‡j †ekxi fvM †fvU c‡ÿ covq 1bs Av‡jvP¨m~Px A_©vr Ò24‡k wW‡m¤^i, 2020 Zvwi‡L AbywôZ 
39Zg evwl©K mvaviY mfvi Kvh©weeiYx me©m¤§wZμ‡g MÖnY I Aby‡gv`b Kiv n‡jv|Ó

Av‡jvP¨m~Px 02: 30‡k Ryb, 2021 Zvwi‡L mgvß A_© eQ‡ii wbixw¶Z wnmve I Dnvi Dci cwiPvjKgÛjxi I wbix¶Ke…‡›`i cÖwZ‡e`b 
MÖnY, we‡ePbv I Aby‡gv`bt

e¨e¯’vcbv cwiPvjK g‡nv`q 30‡k Ryb, 2021 Zvwi‡L mgvß A_© eQ‡ii wnmv‡ei Dci wWwRUvj cøvUd‡g© mshy³ m¤§vwbZ 
‡kqvi‡nvìvi‡`i D‡jøL‡hvM¨ msL¨K ‡kqvi‡nvìvi Zv‡`i g~j¨evb gZvgZ cÖ`vb K‡ib| Zv‡`i g‡a¨ Rbve ‡gvt Rbve gwnDwÏb kvgxg 
(weI wnmve bs-1202600000077964), Rbve ksKi Kzgvi gwjøK (weI wnmve bs-1204430015340656),  Rbve ‡gvt AvgRv` 
‡nv‡mb Lvb ‡mv‡nj (weI wnmve bs-1202140021332940), Rbve ‡gvt gbmyi-G †Lv`v (weI wnmve bs-1201580000184217), 
Rbve ‡gvt †mvnive †nv‡mb wjsKb (weI wnmve bs-1201470000021711), Rbve ‡gvt ‡mvnvM (weI wnmve bs 
1202600000093358), Rbve ‡gvt kvgmzj nK ‡ecvix wicb (weI wnmve bs-1203600032769984), Rbve kvn Avjg evey (weI 
wnmve bs-1202140000014006), Rbve kvn Avjg evey ggZvR (weI wnmve bs 1204290068229161), Rbve gymZv‡qb wejøvn 
(weI wnmve bs 1205590021635910), Rbve Kwei Avn‡g` †PŠayix (weI wnmve bs 1601880045843500), Rbve Avwgbyj 
Bmjvg fzBqv (weI wnmve bs 1204490034884073), Rbve †gvt Rvwn` †nv‡mb (weI wnmve bs 1202610003233191), Rbve 
‡gvt wbRvgyj nK gwjøK (weI wnmve bs 1202880028423531), Rbve ‡gvt gvngy`yj nvmvb (weI wnmve bs 
1203710020014843), Rbve †gvt Avdmvi DÏxb miKvi (weI wnmve bs 1202020063470339) cÖg~L ‡kqvi‡nvìviMY 
Ab¨Zg| Zvuiv †KvwfW-19 gnvgvixi g‡a¨I †Kv¤úvwbi avivevwnK mvdj¨ we‡kl K‡i Drcv`b, weμq, jvf Ges †kqvi cÖwZ Avq 
mewKQzB weMZ eQ‡ii Zzjbvq †ekx nIqvq cwiPvjbv cl©`‡K ab¨ev` Rvbvb| Zuviv G `y‡h©v‡Mi g‡a¨I 50% bM` jf¨vsk cÖ`vb Kivq 
†evW©-Gi cÖwZ K…ZÄZv cÖKvk K‡ib| GQvov Zuviv ÷K wWwf‡WÛ cÖ`vb Ges cwi‡kvwaZ g~jab 30 †KvwU UvKvq DbœxZ Kivi wel‡q 
Rvb‡Z †P‡q‡Qb| †Kn †Kn Avevi kvixwiK Dcw¯’‡Z evwl©K mvaviY mfv AbywôZ Kiv Ges jf¨vsk AviI †ekx †`qvi Aby‡iva 
Rvwb‡q‡Qb| Z‡e AwaKvsk †kqvi‡nvìviMYB †Kv¤úvwbi e¨emvwqK Kvh©μ‡g mš‘wó cÖKvk K‡i‡Qb Ges cwiPvjbv cl©‡`i Rb¨ cÖksmv 
I †`vqv K‡i‡Qb Ges Zuv‡`i cÖwZ c~Y© Av¯’v Ávcb K‡i‡Qb| 

AZtci e¨e¯’vcbv cwiPvjK g‡nv`q m¤§vwbZ †kqvi‡nvìvi‡`i gnvg‡Zi cÖwZ kÖ×v †cvlY K‡i Dnvi DËi cÖ`vb K‡ib| wZwb 
†kqvi‡nvìviM‡Yi gZ cwiPvjbv cl©‡`i cÿ †_‡KI mKj †kqvi‡nvìviM‡Yi my¯’¨Zv I my¯^v¯’¨ Z_v †Kv¤úvwbi mg„w×i Rb¨ gnvb 
AvjøvnZvqvjvi wbKU cÖv_©bv K‡ib| e¨e¯’vcbv cwiPvjK g‡nv`q Zvui cÖviw¤¢K e³‡e¨i g‡a¨ †kqvi‡nvìviM‡Yi A‡bK cÖ‡kœi DËi 
cÖ`vb K‡i‡Qb weavq Dnv cybive„wË K‡ibwb| fwel¨‡Z fvP©yqvj mfvi cwie‡Z© kvixwiK Dcw¯’wZi gva¨‡g evwl©K mfvi wel‡q ‡Kvb 
wbðqZv cÖ`vb K‡ibwb| KviY Dnv cwi‡ek cwiw¯’wZi Dci wbf©ikxj| 50% bM` jf¨vs‡ki †ekx jf¨vsk cÖ`v‡bi mycvwik bv Kivi 
wel‡q evwl©K cÖwZ‡e`‡bi 13bs c„ôvq 10bs †bv‡U D‡jøL Kiv n‡q‡Q| †evW© fwel¨‡Z AviI †ekx jf¨vsk cÖ`v‡bi Rb¨ AvcÖvb †Póv 
Ae¨vnZ ivLvi cÖZ¨q e¨³ K‡ib| Z‡e mewKQzB wbf©i Ki‡e gnvb AvjøvnZvqvjvi B”Qvi Dci| GQvov ˆewk¦K Z_v †`‡ki cwi‡ek I 
cwiw¯’wZ G†ÿ‡Î Av‡bKvs‡k wbf©ikxj| cwi‡k‡l wZwb K‡ivbv Ges Iwgμbmn mKj cÖKvi gnvgvix I †ivMevjvB n‡Z gnvb 
AvjøvnZvqvjvi wbKU mK‡ji †ndvRZ Kvgbv K‡ib| 

‡h‡nZz Av‡jvP¨ A_© eQ‡ii wnmv‡ei Dci m¤§vwbZ †kqvi‡nvìviMY †Kvb ai‡bi weiƒc gšÍe¨ K‡ibwb, †m‡nZz e¨e¯’vcbv cwiPvjK 
g‡nv`q wWwRUvj cøvUd‡g© mshy³ mKj †kqvi‡nvìvi‡`i AvšÍwiK ab¨ev` Rvwb‡q 30†k Ryb, 2021 Zvwi‡L mgvß A_© eQ‡ii wbixwÿZ 
wnmve I Dnvi Dci cwiPvjKgÛjx I wbixÿK‡`i cÖwZ‡e`b Aby‡gv`‡bi Rb¨ m¤§vwbZ †kqvi‡nvìvi‡`i 1:00 wgwbU mgq wba©viY K‡i 
Zuv‡`i g~j¨evb †fvU cÖ`v‡bi Rb¨ Aby‡iva Rvbv‡j †ekxi fvM †fvU c‡ÿ covq 2bs Av‡jvP¨m~Px A_©vr Ò30‡k Ryb, 2021 Zvwi‡L mgvß 
A_©eQ‡ii wnmve I Dnvi Dci cwiPvjKgÛjxi I wbixÿK e„‡›`i cÖwZ‡e`b me©m¤§wZμ‡g M„nxZ I Aby‡gvw`Z n‡jv|Ó

Av‡jvP¨m~Px 03: 30‡k Ryb, 2021 Zvwi‡Li mgvß A_© eQ‡ii Rb¨ cwiPvjbv cl©`-Gi mycvwikK…Z wWwf‡WÛ Aby‡gv`bt
e¨e¯’vcbv cwiPvjK g‡nv`q Dc‡iv³ Av‡jvP¨m~Px cv‡ki Rb¨ m¤§vwbZ †kqvi‡nvìvi‡`i 1:00 wgwbU mgq wba©viY K‡i Zuv‡`i g~j¨evb 
†fvU cÖ`v‡bi Aby‡iva Rvbv‡j †ekxi fvM †fvU c‡ÿ covq 3bs Av‡jvP¨m~Px A_©vr Ò2020-2021Bs A_© eQ‡ii Rb¨ 50% bM` 
jf¨vsk me©m¤§wZμ‡g Aby‡gvw`Z n‡jv|Ó



Av‡jvP¨m~Px 04: AvwU©‡Kjm Ae G‡mvwm‡qkb Gi kZ© ‡gvZv‡eK cwiPvjKe…‡›`i Aemi MÖnb I wbe©vPbt 
evwl©K cÖwZ‡e`‡bi 12bs c„óvq 6bs †bv‡U D‡jøL Kiv n‡q‡Q †h, G eQi Pμvbyμ‡g cwiPvjbv cl©` †_‡K Rbve †gvt Aveyj gvmy` Aemi 
MÖnb K‡i‡Qb| wZwb cyb:wb‡qv‡Mi †hvM¨ nIqvq wb‡qvM cªvwßi Rb¨ AvMÖn cÖKvk K‡i‡Qb Ges cwiPvjbv cl©` me©m¤§wZμ‡g Zv mycvwik 
K‡i‡Qb| 

e¨e¯’vcbv cwiPvjK g‡nv`q Dc‡iv³ Av‡jvP¨m~Px Aby‡gv`‡bi Rb¨ m¤§vwbZ †kqvi‡nvìvi‡`i 1:00 wgwbU mgq wba©viY K‡i Zuv‡`i 
g~j¨evb †fvU cÖ`v‡bi Aby‡iva Rvbv‡j †ekxi fvM †fvU c‡ÿ covq 4bs Av‡jvP¨m~Px Aby‡gv`b Kiv n‡jv A_©vr Ò†Kv¤úvwbi cwiPvjK 
c‡` Rbve †gvt Aveyj gvmy` cybtwbe©vwPZ n‡jb|Ó

Av‡jvP¨m~Px 05: †Kv¤úvwb AvBb, 1994 Abyhvqx ‡Kv¤úvwbi e¨e¯’vcbv cwiPvjK-Gi wbe©vPb/cybtwbe©vPbt evwl©K cÖwZ‡e`‡bi 12bs c„óvq 
7bs †bv‡U D‡jøL Kiv n‡q‡Q †h, †Kv¤úvwb AvB‡bi 110 aviv †gvZv‡eK G eQi eZ©gvb e¨e¯’vcbv cwiPvjK , Rbve dv‡qRyj nvmvb-Gi 
†gqv` DËxb© nIqvq cwiPvjbv cl©` †_‡K wZwb Aemi MÖnb K‡i‡Qb| wZwb cyb:wb‡qv‡Mi †hvM¨ nIqvq AvMvgx 5 eQ‡ii Rb¨ wb‡qvM 
cÖvwßi AvMÖn cÖKvk K‡i‡Qb Ges cwiPvjbv cl©` me©¤§wZμ‡g Zv mycvwik K‡i‡Qb| 

e¨e¯’vcbv cwiPvjK g‡nv`q Dc‡iv³ Av‡jvP¨m~Px Aby‡gv`‡bi Rb¨ m¤§vwbZ †kqvi‡nvìvi‡`i 1:00 wgwbU mgq wba©viY K‡i Zuv‡`i 
g~j¨evb †fvU cÖ`v‡bi Aby‡iva Rvbv‡j †ekxi fvM †fvU c‡ÿ covq 5bs Av‡jvP¨m~Px Aby‡gv`b Kiv n‡jv A_©vr Òe¨e¯’vcbv cwiPvjK 
wn‡m‡e Rbve dv‡qRyj nvmvb AvMvgx 5 (cuvP) eQ‡ii Rb¨ cybtwbe©vwPZ n‡jb|Ó

Av‡jvP¨m~Px 06: 2020-2021 Bs A_© eQ‡ii Rb¨ wbix¶K wb‡qvM I Zv‡`i cvwik«wgK wba©vibt
evwl©K cÖwZ‡e`‡bi 13bs c„óvq 11bs †bv‡U D‡jøL Kiv n‡q‡Q †h, ‡gmvm© gv‡jK wmwÏKx Iqvjx, PvU©vW© GKvD÷¨v›Um, Av‡jvP¨ eQimn 
3 eQi ‡Kv¤úvwbi wbixÿK wQ‡jb| AvBbvbyhvqx wZwb cieZ©x A_©eQi A_©vr 2021-2022Bs mv‡ji Rb¨ wb‡qvM cÖvwßi †hvM¨ bq weavq 
Zv‡`i ¯’‡j ‡gmvm© kwdK emvK GÛ †Kv:, PvU©vW© GKvD÷¨v›Um, kZvãx †m›Uvi (6ô I 8g Zjv), 292, Bbvi mvK©yjvi †ivW, dwKivcyj, 
gwZwSj, XvKv, wbixÿK wn‡m‡e wb‡qvM jv‡fi B”Qv cÖKvk K‡i‡Qb| Ab¨ †Kvb AwWU dvg© D³ welq AvMÖn cÖKvk bv Kivq cwiPvjbv 
cl©` Zv‡`i‡K evwl©K 150,000/- UvKv cvwikÖwgK wba©vibc~e©K 2021-22 A_© eQ‡ii wbixÿK wn‡m‡e wb‡qv‡Mi mycvwik K‡i‡Qb|

e¨e¯’vcbv cwiPvjK g‡nv`q Dc‡iv³ Av‡jvP¨m~Px Aby‡gv`‡bi Rb¨ m¤§vwbZ †kqvi‡nvìvi‡`i 1:00 wgwbU mgq wba©viY K‡i Zuv‡`i 
g~j¨evb †fvU cÖ`v‡bi Aby‡iva Rvbv‡j †ekxi fvM †fvU c‡ÿ covq 6bs Av‡jvP¨m~Px Aby‡gv`b Kiv n‡jv A_©vr Ò‡gmvm© kwdK emvK 
GÛ †Kvs, PvU©vW© GKvD›U¨v›Um-‡K cvwikÖwgK wn‡m‡e 1,50,000.00 (GK jÿ cuÂvk nvRvi) UvKv wba©viYc~e©K 2021-2022Bs A_© 
eQ‡ii Rb¨ wbixÿK wb‡qvM Kiv n‡jv|Ó

Av‡jvP¨m~Px 07: 2020-2021Bs A_© eQ‡ii Rb¨ cÖwZcvjb wbix¶K (Compliance Auditor) wb‡qvM I Zuv‡`i cvwikªwgK wba©vibt
2020-2021 A_© eQ‡ii Rb¨ †gmvm© AvwU©mvb, PvU©vW© GKvD›U¨v›Um K¤úøv‡qÝ AwWUi wn‡m‡e wb‡qvMcÖvß wQ‡jb, Zviv 2021-2022 
A_©eQ‡ii Rb¨ Av‡e`b K‡ibwb| evwl©K cÖwZ‡e`‡bi 13bs c„óvq 12bs †bv‡U D‡jøL Kiv n‡q‡Q †h, ‡gmvm© gv‡jK wmwÏKx Iqvjx, 
PvU©vW© GKvD÷¨v›Um, K¤úøv‡qÝ AwWUi wn‡m‡e wb‡qvM jv‡fi B”Qv cÖKvk Kivq cwiPvjbv cl©` Zv‡`i‡K evwl©K 40,000/- (Pwjøk 
nvRvi) UvKv wba©viY c~e©K 2021-2022Bs A_© eQ‡ii Rb¨ Kgcøv‡qÝ AwWUi wn‡m‡e wb‡qv‡Mi mycvwik K‡i‡Qb|

e¨e¯’vcbv cwiPvjK g‡nv`q Dc‡iv³ Av‡jvP¨myPx Aby‡gv`‡bi Rb¨ m¤§vwbZ †kqvi‡nvìvi‡`i 1:00 wgwbU mgq wba©viY K‡i Zuv‡`i 
g~j¨evb †fvU cÖ`v‡bi Aby‡iva Rvbv‡j †ekxi fvM †fvU c‡ÿ covq 7bs Av‡jvP¨m~Px Aby‡gv`b Kiv n‡jv A_©vr Ò†gmvm© gv‡jK wmwÏwK 
Iqvjx, PvU©vW© GKvD›U¨v›Um-‡K cvwikÖwgK wn‡m‡e 40,000.00 (Pvwjøk nvRvi) UvKv wba©viYc~e©K 2021-2022Bs A_© eQ‡ii Rb¨ 
Kgcøv‡qÝ AwWUi wb‡qvM Kiv n‡jv|Ó

Av‡jvP¨m~Px 08: Ab¨ †Kvb Av‡jvP¨ welq bv _vKvq e¨e¯’vcbv cwiPvjK g‡nv`q wWwRUvj cøvUd‡g© AbywôZ 40Zg evwl©K mvaviY 
mfvq mshy³ mKj‡K AveviI AvšÍwiK ab¨ev` Rvwb‡q mfvi mgvwß ‡Nvlbv K‡ib|

dv‡qRyj nvmvb
e¨e¯’vcbv cwiPvjK
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